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Kennor e, Washi ngton; Monday, March 2, 2017
9:30 a.m
--000- -

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Let's get started.
Once again, today we're on day two of the site plan
application and FEI S appeal of Lodge at Sai nt Edwards
project, CSP16-0077. It is 9:30 o' clock in the norning
on March 2nd. We're back to the SEPA appell ants
presentation of the SEPA appeal portion of the
consol i dat ed heari ng.

Are the SEPA appellants here today?

M5. MOONEY: They are coni ng.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Oh, okay. Al
right. Let's give themsone tine then. | see them
wal ki ng in the door right now Good norning.

M5. H RT: Good norning.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | was j ust
getting us oriented to what we're doing this norning.
So when you're ready, Ms. Hirt, go right ahead.

M5. HRT: Can | --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Sure. You can
sit down.

M5. HRT: D d you want ne here?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  That's fi ne.
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You're still noving forward with your presentation from
yest er day.

M5. HHRT: Yes. Right. Oay. So there
are a couple of things I actually thought | would just
wap up. And -- but | need to find the papers, so | can
read it. As | said in ny introduction of nyself, |'ve
been involved with the park or known about the park and
supported the park in many ways, and | would |ike -- |

know that we didn't put anything in a brief about the

managenent plan, because it wasn't until | got sonething
back fromthe hearing exam ner that, yes, all |and use
plans that are in -- excuse nme -- all |and use plans

that are in effect at that tinme should be consi dered.

So | would just like to say that sonme of the
sections -- or some of the problens that we see -- that
| see with the nanagenent plan -- and | would like to
qgualify nyself as sonmeone that does know t he managenent
pl an, because | spent two years on the advisory
cormittee for the CAMP and sat through and parti ci pated
i n many di scussions about the building in that process.
And so |"'mvery famliar with it.

And | was al so part of that advisory
commttee. And the conm ssioners thensel ves approved
this. It was not just approved by the Executive

Director of Parks, which was sonething that they had not
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done before. So this was unaninously -- this 2008 plan
was unani nously approved by the State Parks Comm ssion
in 2008. But the --

M5. WEHLING | apol ogi ze for
interrupting, but can I just ask for a point of
clarification fromthe Hearing Examner. M. Hirt, are
you providing a closing argunent or are you providing --
are you calling yourself as a witness and providing

testinmony?

M5. HRT: I'mcalling nyself as a
Wi t ness.
M5. WEHLI NG  Thank you.
Dl RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. HI RT:

M5. HRT: Anyway, | would like to read
you sone things that have concern to ne that any use of
the Sem nary buil ding nust be, A subordinate and
conplinentary to the primary attraction and use of the
park as a natural sanctuary and place of outdoor
recreation. B, secondary to -- and shoul d be secondary
to and conpatible with the outdoor recreation as
specified in the | andmark conservation limtations and
rules and policies. And then that was nunber 8 under
the tal k about the buil ding.

B was that the priority should -- to use
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in the Sem nary building, which support outdoor
recreation and traditional park activities. | sonetines
guestion that this project does that.

My comrent is this project does not really
support outdoor recreation and traditional park
activities but brings in new activities that are not in
keeping with either the history of the building or the
history of the park.

And | think that in the Draft EIS or the FEI' S
it says it brings in new activity in the park that has
never been there.

So certain portions of the building are
of particular value for public use. And these were the
main floor, which is, of course, the grand dining hall,
the former faculty |ounge, the classroons, the
second-floor library, sanctuary to neet in the dining
hal |, which is beneath in the basenent.

And then while there's a | ot about this
building that is open to the public -- and it hasn't
been open to the public -- I had to kind of chuckle when
| read sonething about -- the other night, in one of the
docunents -- it hasn't been open to the public for 90
years. Well, that's true. Because for 40 years, it was
a school. It was a semnary. But | had to | augh about

the 90 years.
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Anyway, | don't see that this project
opens this building to the public any nore than it's
open now. | see it being open only to those who are
payi ng custoners and guests to the building. Well, |
see that, in ny opinion, fromwhat | read through, is

that people will be able to cone into the building and

probably wal k the halls by the classroons -- and | know
that -- | certainly understand the hotel area not being
open.

But | don't see that people are going to be
wel comed in the building, unless they are conmng to the
restaurant, the café, or staying at the hotel, or
they're attending a conference, all of which depends on
t he paynent.

The use of the Sem nary buil di ng should
not result in alteration of the sem nary grounds. And
then this displacenment of the volleyball court, which is

also in the historical record. And it is part of the

historical culture. 1It's also registered on the
historical registry. It's listed in sonmething | read in
the material -- I'msorry | do not have all the page

nunbers. But it was listed as part of the historical
record. Qpposed to a building that was over by the
grotto that | think they tore down. That was fromthe

hi stori cal documents.
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So the other thing is uses -- and again,
uses of the building should not materially limt or
di stract fromcurrent and future outdoor use of the
grounds, trails, and ball field. And, again, | note
back to the displacenent of the -- well, it's not a
di spl acenent of the volleyball court, it is a do-away of
the volleyball court. As an exanple of something on the
historical registry that will be lost -- it's actually a
| oss of recreation in that situation.

And then so seek to retain a majority of
t he buil ding, being available for public use for a
reasonable fee. Well, we have no idea if this will be a
reasonable fee. All indications are that the targeted
users of this project are those with an incone in the
top 5 to 25 percent, not the general public.

So | would say nmy real concern is that -- in

| ooking -- as a nenber of the advisory commttee, in al
uses that we | ooked at -- and believe ne, we spent hours
in neetings and hours -- a lot of time on the conputer
| ooki ng at ot her parks and what were done. But in
| ooki ng at that, our concern was always that the
bui | di ng not overtake the park.

In ny opinion, this project, whatever
goes in the building, will overtake the park. In ny

hunbl e opinion, | think that there's a big possibility
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t hat coul d happen here, in spite of the extra 9.9 acres
here that is such wonderful property. That's what |'m
going to say about the nmanagenent plan. It really
pertains to this project.

So the other thing that I want to bring

up and | just eluded to it, is that yesterday -- |I'm
sorry. | guess | didn't have enough tea yesterday.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | had t he sane

probl em yest er day.

M5. HRT: In the summary -- or in the
mar ket feasibility study done for Daniels Real Estate,
so it was -- there's a lot of talk about the hotel.

MR. RANADE: M. Examner, |I'magoing to
object to discussion of the market feasibility study.
It is not inthe record. It is hearsay, and Ms. Hirt
does not have the ability to lay a proper foundation
here. It's not in the record.

THE HEARING EXAMNER: |'Il respond to
that. Did M. Daniels talk about the market feasibility
yesterday? | don't recall.

MR. RANADE: He did not.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  He did not.

M5. HRT: I'msorry. | thought it was
in here. Because | --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | know t he
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commerce study was in there. That was attached as an
exhibit to a nmotion to dism ss.

M5. HHRT: | thought it was in the
draft. That's where | thought | got this information.

MR. RANADE: Those are two different
studies. The commerce study, which was done by the
State, is in the record. W have no objection to her
tal king about that one. The market feasibility is an
internal docunent that is not in the record. W do
obj ect to that docunent.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al l right,
Ms. Hirt, why don't you nove on. |If you think of where
it isin the record, let ne know But, otherw se, if
you woul d nove on to your next point.

M5. HRT: GCkay. Well, could I just
bring up one thing that was in the feasibility study?

MR. RANADE: | repeat ny objection.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  What is it that
you want to bring up?

M5. HRT: | want to bring up a standard

that hasn't been nentioned that was fromthe JLL report.

MR. RANADE: | repeat ny objection,
agai n.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Okay. Well, | --

MR. RANADE: It is an internal study.
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It is hearsay. And it is a proprietary docunent.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | just want to
hear what the standard is to knowif it's irrelevant or
not .

M5. HHRT: The standard | want to bring
up was that -- this is fromJLL and their industry
know edge that optinmal neeting space for a proposed
hotel --

THE REPORTER  Opti mal what ?

M5. HHRT: Meeting space. |'msorry.

That was yesterday. That was different.

MR. RANADE: M. Exam ner, this report
has proprietary information. As | sit here right now, I
don't know if ny client -- what contractual obligations
surround this report, so | have a | ot of concerns about
the reading out of this report. |'mnot even sure | got
it.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  But the fact is
she has it. It's out there.

M5. HRT: Can | finish ny fact?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | want to hear if
it'"s relevant or not. |Is the point you're trying to
make, Ms. Hirt, this mght not be financially feasible,
this project?

M5. HRT: No. I|I'mnot trying to say
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that. |I'mnot going there. |'mnot stating that
opi ni on.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay. So where
are we going with this information is what I'mtrying to
find out?

M5. HHRT: Okay. |I'mgoing with the
fact that it says the pro -- for -- okay -- optinal
nmeeti ng space would be 80 to 90 square feet of neeting
space per room and that that would nean 8 to 9, 000
square feet of neeting space for a hundred-room hotel .

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay.

MR. RANADE: And this hotel -- or this
project has 16,000 -- that's really -- so the project
has two times the anmount of neeting space that -- this
standard, which was the only place | could find a
standard. That's why | used it.

THE HEARING EXAM NER: | take it you're
maki ng that point to underlie the fact it just won't be
hotel guests that are using the neeting space?

M5. HRT: R ght. That's really the
point | want to nake.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. Under st ood
that it is hearsay. |It's not in the record.

M5. HHRT: | thought it was in the

record. So it must have cone off of -- anyway, |
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t hought it was in the record.

MR. RANADE: M. Exam ner, again, for
the record, | would like to nove to strike that off the
record, after consulting with nmy client about whether or
not we have sone contractual obligation here. | just
don't know.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al l right.

M5. HI RT: Honestly, | don't know -- |
think it was on a website. It was on sonmething early in
this process.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yeah. | nean
the fact is, if you had access -- right.

M5. HRT: It wasn't sonething that was
covertly found. It was sonething avail able easily.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  |' m assum ng you
didn't break into their office at night and steal it out
of afiling cabinet. It looks like it was out in the
public. But I'Il let the applicant raise the issue
before the record is closed. O | can even keep the
record open a couple days, if we need to, so you can
| ook into that issue.

MR. RANADE: |'Ill have the answer by the
time we're ready to present.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay. Sounds

great .
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M5. H RT: Anyway. | thought it was in
the -- had cone out of here. And | have to admt, |
di dn't check.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  All right. Let's
nove on.

M5. HIRT: Okay. The other thing that I
wanted to nention was about the trees that woul d be cut
down. And there is a picture show ng the parking |ot.
This is in the Tree Solutions's Consulting Arborist --
that is in the record.

M5. WEHLING Ms. Hirt, could you just
identify which exhibit that is in the record, so it's
easy for us to get to it?

M5. HRT: I'msorry. | don't know what
page. | don't have all of this record on pages. | have
it in a huge folder.

M5. WEHLI NG Coul d you provide the
exhi bit nunber?

M5. HHRT: No, | can't, because |'ve
already taken it out of ny file.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Was it a core
exhibit or which --

M5. HHRT: This is the Tree Sol utions
Consul ting Arborist report.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Yeabh. You can't
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tell me if it was sonething listed in the staff report
or the applicant?

MR. MJURPHY: M. Examiner, | can verify
that is the Applicants' Exhibit No. 34.

M5. HRT: Thank you. | couldn't tel
you whi ch nunber it was because it was taken out of ny
big folder, and I didn't wite down the nunber on the
top of the page.

So, anyway, there are 11 trees slated for
this -- they are trees -- they went through a nunber of
trees. They are -- trees 143 to 153 need to be renoved
to accommobdat e a proposed parking garage. And then
there are two additional trees that should be renoved
due to poor structure.

Anyway, and it says that, in here, additional

trees may need to be renpved to acconmopdate the parking

garage. I'msorry. | thought that there was sonething
in here that the majority of these trees -- well,
anyway.

So there are trees to be renoved. And the
thing is, Is there a way to do parking w thout renoving
the trees? Here's the picture. It was also in their
report of the trees that need to be renoved. There is a
chart that shows that the trees are predom nantly

western red cedar, with a few Douglas firs. |In fact,
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there's three Douglas firs and the rest are western red
cedars. So these are not trees that take only a short
time to grow, so that's --

| wanted to point that out that that is in the
record, and it is sonething the trees -- those trees are
a beautiful part of the park. And they are sonething
that you do | ook out over. And they are -- so | don't
think they should be conpletely ignored and shoul d be
consi dered, Are there other ways to do the parking? So
that's really -- those are really ny conmments here
t oday.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Okay. So we'l|
nmove on to cross-exam nation fromthe applicant at this
poi nt .

MR. RANADE: Thank you, M. Exam ner.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR RANADE
Q Good norning, Ms. Hrt. | have a few
guestions for you about your testinony. | can't
remenber, were you under oath?
A Yes, | was.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Whoever was sworn
in yesterday is still under oath today.

Q (BY MR RANADE) You nmade the comment that the

building will not be open to the public any nore than
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it is now Do you renenber saying that a few m nutes

ago?

A Yes.

Q That, as a result of this project, the
building will not be any nore open to the public than

it is now? So can you just walk into the building
ri ght now?

A | can't walk into the building right now,
because State Parks is --

Q You have to nmke an appointnment to get into
the building; is that right?

A. That's correct.

Q Okay. After this project, could you go into
the building, get a cup of coffee, and maybe go for a
wal k in the park?

A.  Yes, | could.

Q Thank you. You tal ked about the volleyball

A. But | would be a paying custoner.

Q But you could walk into the building, get a
cup of coffee, and go for a walk in the park?

A MW point --

Q | understand your point was you have to buy a
cup of coffee.

A M point is | wuld not be able to walk -- the
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people that will be welconed into this building are
payi ng custoners.

Q Do you have any information that Daniels plans
to charge an adm ssion fee for just walking into the
bui | di ng?

AL No, | donot. | just --

Q So you're guessing that there is going to be
an admi ssion fee just to walk in?

A. No, |I'mnot.

Q Are you assumng there's going to be a bouncer
that's going to kick people out at the door?

A. No, | amnot. But |I've wal ked into many
hotels, and | know that the | obby and the --

Q Have you ever wal ked into an open building to
use the bathroom but not, say, bought a cup of coffee?

A. | have occasionally, yes.

Q And do you think that is not going to be
possible in this building.

A.  That m ght be possible.

THE REPORTER  Can you just wait until
he finishes his question before you answer. Thank you.

Q (BY MR RANADE) You tal ked about the
vol | eybal |l courts being -- suggested that's a materi al
change to the outdoor use. Do you renenber talking

about that?

206 622 6875 | 800 8316973
production@yomreporting.com
www.yomreporting.com



N

o 0o B~ W

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

HEARING PROCEEDINGS, VOL 2; March 02, 2017

326

A. R ght.

Q In the context of the managenent plan?

A. R ght.

Q It's my understanding the volleyball courts
are sand vol |l eyball courts; isn't that right?

A Yes.

Q | think yesterday you said you lived in the
nei ghbor hood for many decades; is that right?

A.  Yes.

Q How many nonths of the year would you say it's
kind of |ike now, or has been for the |ast few days,
wet, cold, rainy? How many nonths out of the year,
having |ived here so | ong?

A Well, we know at |east six nonths of the year.

Q At least six nonths of the year. Do you know
what happens to a sand vol |l eyball court when it's cold
and rainy, especially the rain we get this tine of
year ?

A. | don't play volleyball.

Q Have you ever used those volleyball courts?

A. | don't play volleyball.

Q You al so expressed a concern this |odge wll
overtake the rest of the park. Did | understand that
correctly?

A. That is correct.
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Q Have you done any independent study or traffic
anal ysis to support your concern?

A.  Not independently.

Q Do you dispute the statenent by Parks and the
Cty, that's in the EIS, that there are about 865, 000
visitors to the park every year?

A. | don't dispute that. | think -- | don't know
what they are quoting, though, and I don't know where
it came from

Q But you have no reason to dispute it? You
have no contrary information; is that right?

A. Right now, yes, | have a contrary opinion.

Q | didn't ask about opinion. W're not
interested in opinion.

You asked ne if | have a contrary opinion.

Q No. | asked if you had contrary infornmation.
A Oh, information.

Q Correct.

A I'msorry. It's not part of the record.

Q Wll, it's a yes or no question.

A. | have -- yes, | have information, but it's

not part of the record.
Q Oay. So let ne ask you, Have you stood at
the park entrance with a little counter and counted all

the visitors?
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A. O course not.
Q So you don't have any contrary information to
what the State Parks and the City have said about how

many visitors there are on an annual basis?

A. It depends on what year they're tal king about.

Q Is there a year in which you do have

information that is contrary to State Parks and the

Cty?
A.  Yes, | do.
Q \What year?
A. | have information from 2016.
Q Okay. Wat information is that?
A. | have information based on the nunber of

aut onobiles coming in. This does not count people who
conme in by foot, people who conme in by bicycles. And
there are a | ot of people that come in by bicycles.
They park in ny nei ghborhood, so that they don't have
to pay the parking fee. And they ride their bicycles
over to the park to use the grounds.

Q So the information you have is sone people
park in your nei ghborhood and you know ot her people --

A. | have information of -- based on the nunber
of cars that enter. | have infornmation of over half a
mllion people visited the park.

Q D dyou count the half mllion people
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your sel f?

A. No, | did not.

Q Solet's go with the 865,000 that State Parks
and the Gty have established as the average nunber of
users over a year. Wuld you say that a 25 percent
increase in the nunber of users would be sonething that
overtakes the park?

A. | would say that this nunber is high for
recent years.

Q So what percentage of an increase in the
nunber of users of the park would you say overtakes the
par k?

A It's not that the use of the park overtakes
it. It's the part that the use in the flat court area
of the park is overtaking.

Q But how do you neasure when it's overtaki ng?

A.  \Wen people, right now --

Q Are you tal king about a cultural change?

A.  Yes.

Q kay. You're concerned about a cultural
change in the park?

A. That's right. That's what | said.

Q Is it your view that | odge guests are not
menbers of the public?

A. No. That is not ny view

206 622 6875 | 800 8316973
production@yomreporting.com
www.yomreporting.com



N

o 0o B~ W

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

HEARING PROCEEDINGS, VOL 2; March 02, 2017

330

Q Is it your view that nenbers of the public
shoul d not be able to use this public park?

A. No. That is not ny view

Q You testified to a concern about the trees
being renoved in the park. Do you renenber that?

A. R ght.

Q You said you're concerned that there are trees
that m ght be taken sort of along the northeast edge of
the parking ot -- reconfigured parking |ot?

A. Yes. There's a possibility of those --
according to the Tree Solutions's consulting arbori st,
there are 11 trees that are a possible -- will possibly
be destroyed.

Q And | thought I heard you say you wi sh there
was sone alternative that woul d preserve those trees?

A.  Right.

Q Wuuld you please flip to 3.3-9 of the Draft
EIS? This is Core Exhibit 19?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  \What page nunber
agai n?
MR. RANADE: 3.3-9, just to give
everyone context, we're in the section of the Draft EI S
that tal ks about plants and ani nal s.
Q (BY MR RANADE) And I'mgoing to read you

sonething -- if you'll follow along, I'mgoing to read
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you sonething out of the Draft EIS. This is in the
very bottom paragraph, second sentence. Along the
nort hwest edge of the | ease area where an expansi on of
the parking area is proposed, ten neasured trees, open
parens, as well as sone adjacent unneasured trees,

cl osed paren, will likely need to be renoved to

accompdat e the parking | ot entrance off the main road.

Is that the concern you were tal king about?

Are those the sane trees?

A. Exactly. Those are the sane trees.

Q So you would agree it's in the EI S?

A.  Yes, | do.

Q And would you please flip a couple pages down
to 3.3-117

A.  Uh-huh

Q Right in the mddle, do you see the section

entitled plants?

A Yes.
Q I'mlooking at the |ast sentence in the first
paragraph of that section, and I'll read it.

Alternative 2 would allow for the retention of the
approxi mately 17,500-square-foot area and associ at ed
existing trees and vegetation wthin that area to the
nort heast of the Sem nary buil ding and gymasi um

including the retention of potential renoval under
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Al ternative 1.
Is this the alternative you said you w sh
there was so the trees could be saved?

A. Actually, it is.

Q And you agree with ne, it's in the EIS?

A.  Yes, | do.

MR. RANADE: | have no further
guesti ons.

A.  However --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al l right,
Ms. Hirt, when they're all finished asking questions,
you can nake a statenment to explain nore of your answers
in detail. Wth that, let's go to Ms. Whli ng.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. VEHLI NG

Q M. Hirt, I'mpretty far away as these tables
go. Do you need a nonent to conpose yourself? Are you
doi ng okay?

A. I'"mdoing just fine.

Q Yesterday when you provided an introduction
you tal ked about your history of engagenent with this
particular park, but | got just a little bit confused.
| thought you stated in that testinony that you were
one of the founding nenbers of a group called Friends

of Saint Edward State Park?
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A | am

Q But you are here today in your representative
capacity of Citizens for Edward State Park?

A 1 am

Q Are those two different organizations?

A. Correct.

Q Is there a difference between the two
or gani zati ons' m ssions?

A Fri ends of Saint Edward State Park was forned

when we were trying to keep the pool open. It was
formed by State Parks. It runs under State Parks
purview. It is to support the park

Yesterday, in the site plan hearing,
Ms. Aagard showed a map and said it was for naking
signs. The nenbers of Friends is a nenber

organi zation. W do pay dues. The nenbers of

friends -- the nenbers of friends worked for a grant to
do --

Q M. Hirt, with all due respect, | don't need
an explanation. | just wanted to know if the two

or gani zati ons --

A. (I naudible).

Q If you would let nme ask ny question so the
court reporter doesn't have us tal king over each ot her.

| just wanted to know if the two organizations had
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different m ssions?

A.  The mission --

Q It's a yes or no.

A.  Yes. They have two separate m ssions.
They're two di fferent organizations.

Q Thanks. As the Hearing Exam ner expl ai ned,
when you do redirect of yourself, you can explain if
you would like. But for now, | would like you to just
answer the questions that |I'm asking you.

A.  Ckay.

Q M next questions have to do with you' re here
today as a representative of Ctizens for Saint Edward
State Park?

A. Correct.

Q Has Citizens for Saint Edward State Park ever
presented a funded proposal to the Parks Comm ssion for
the use of the Sem nary buil di ng?

A.  No.

Q A few mnutes ago, you tal ked about users
par ki ng in your neighborhood to avoid paying the fee.
Do all users of Saint Edward State Park, fromthe
public, have to pay a fee to use the park?

A. A parking fee.

Q Is that the D scover Pass?

A. Yes.
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Q Does the public have to pay a fee to use the
dining hall?

A.  Yes. But -- yes.

Q So, Ms. Hirt, you identified that you spent a
ot of tinme working on the 2008 -- the abbreviation is
CAVMP, C A-MP?

A. Correct.

Q If I could direct you -- and you have a big
bi nder, not the core exhibits, the Iist of exhibits
that are the Daniels exhibits, Exhibit No. 26. In that
bi nder is the 2008 CAMP for Saint Edward State Park.
Are you there?

A.  Yes.

Q On page 2, there's a list of advisory
commttee nenbers. |Is that you on the list of advisory
conmi ttee menbers?

A.  Yes.

Q If you could go to page 7, there's a list of
attendants at the park, and there's a nunber at the
bottom Could you just tell nme what that attendance
nunmber is?

A, In 2007, it was 865, 000.

Q So alittle bit earlier, you testified you
didn't know where the 865, 000-user nunber came from

Is this is the source of that user nunber?
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A. This is. | questioned the year. | questioned
if it was that year
M5. WEHLI NG Ckay. Thank you very
much. | have no further questions.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay.
M. Kaseguna.
MR. KASEGUMA: | have no questi ons.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al right.
Ms. Hirt, this is your chance to el aborate on any
guestions you were asked.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. HI RT:
M5. HRT: | would like to respond to
t he question about not presenting a funded program
Citizens has conme up with ideas for a long tine about
how to use the building. However, every tinme you talk

to the State, soneone from State Parks, it has been

resi st ed.

You cannot go out and raise funds to do
sonet hing that you don't know will go through. People
will not give noney to do sonething in the building when

you're raising funds. And, no, none of us can get paid
to do this on our own.
However, we woul d have been very willing to go

out and seek funds from many donors, if we had had any
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ki nd of encouragenent for any of our proposals. | hope
t hat answers that question.

Let's see. The dining hall, the dining hal
is used for nmeetings. | have been in neetings for the
dining hall. State Parks uses the dining hall when they
want to. Yes, if you are reserving the dining hall for
a wedding, you do pay a fee. And it is limted to 49 to
50 peopl e, based on the fire code.

Let's see. So in the sunmary, you asked about
Friends and you asked about Citizens. Friends is a
501(c)3, Citizens is a 501(c)4, and it is registered
with the State, as you know. So they are conpletely
separate. They have nenbers who overlap. | ama
menber. Three of our board nenbers are al so board
menbers of Friends. That doesn't nean we can't work on
two mssions at the same tinme. | hope that answers and
clarifies that.

Friends is definitely to support projects in
the park, and unfortunately, it's a very snall
organi zati on and very few people attend. So, anyway --
and participate.

| think I was asked about the voll eybal
court. No, | do not play volleyball. M point is that
the volleyball court is part of the historical register,

and it's being deleted for a garden. It doesn't have to
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be part of this project.

Looking -- actually, looking at the map --
wel |, that woul d be bringing sonething in.

Where that garden is placed is al so where the
Friends of Saint Edward State Park -- where the Friends
of Saint Edward has been holding -- it's a picnic area
close to that -- and that's where Friends of Saint
Edward State Park holds their kids' day in the park
festivities where a |lot of activities are done for
children. And | have hel ped and vol unteered with that
and brought ny grandchildren. So | hope that clarifies

my concern about the volleyball court.

|"'mnot going to play volleyball. | don't do
this for my own -- but it is there, and it is part of
the historical -- national historical register, just as

the building is. And it's being deleted, and that does
take away sunmer recreation. Actually, probably takes
it fromMy until COctober, so for those who do play
vol | eybal |

And yes, | amconcerned about the -- | stated
this many tines. As you can see, | use a wal king stick
| can't walk the steep slopes. Hopefully |I get rid of
the wal king stick, but it hasn't happened yet.

Many peopl e use the core of the park for their

exercise. And | don't want that to be -- yes, that is a
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concern | have of the hotel becom ng such a presence.
People will feel they cannot do that. | think that
wraps up --

|"m sorry about the feasibility study. |
t hought it was in the record.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER.  That's fine. Do
you have any other w tnesses you want to present?

M5. H RT: No.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | believe the
applicants wanted to cross-exam ne Ms. Mooney on the
basis that she's listed as a w tness.

MR RANADE: We'll waive that.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. You're not
going to do that. So does the --

MS. H RT: Can Ms. Mooney present
somet hi ng?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yes. She was
listed as a w tness.

MR. RANADE: | guess |I'I|l wthdraw ny
wai ver .

M5. HHRT: Then | call M. Mboney.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER.  Ms. Mooney, have
you been sworn in?

THE WTNESS: | have.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  You're stil
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under oath then

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

M5. MOONEY: |'Il be brief and
efficient. 1'mlasered.

M5. WEHLING |I'msorry, M. Mooney,
before you begin, M. Exam ner, | know you issued a
ruling on this. But, again, | would just like State

Park's continuing objection to the use of any w tness
who did not provide any conment and testinony bel ow.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay. Thank you.
Al right, Ms. Money, go ahead.

M5. MOONEY: | have got a map. | just
have a map here that addresses sone of what Dr. Bain had
t al ked about, which has to do with the aninmals,
including the eagle's nest. And --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Is this a map
that is already in the record sonewhere?

M5. MOONEY: | believe this is not in
the record, and that's why |I'm making sure that it shows
this could have or should have been in the record.

MS. WEHLI NG  Your Honor, | would need
to see this, because we have an obligation under the
Sensitive Wldlife Informati on and Public Records Act to
protect the nesting |ocations of |isted species. And so

if | could review the docunent to make sure it is a
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public docunent, and that there's not waiver of sone
sort of privilege to protect the animals.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  That's fi ne.
Before we even get there, though, as | nentioned in the
prehearing order, only exhibits that were identified in
the exhibit list are adm ssible, except for cause. Wy
wasn't this presented in the exhibit list then?

M5. MOONEY: | was hoping that when
Dr. Bain was giving his testinony that he would ask if
this public docunment, which is from Washi ngton Park Fish
and Wldlife, which he nentioned, which we had at the
time, but the print was bad, so you couldn't see the
circle. So the print was in purple. And when he had
it -- and | conversed with M. Lance, the printing was

so bad. This is on the website. And | asked the Gty

staff -- but, of course, that would not have been
appropriate -- to print it so it would be available
yest er day.

It's a public docunent that is evidence that
there is -- docunent that could have, should have been
in the EI S

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay. |'Il let
Ms. Wehling take a look at it, and also if there are any
objections to it.

M5. MOONEY: Do you want nme to wal k it
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over there?

M5. WEHLI NG That woul d be great.

M5. MOONEY: Thank you.

(Di scussion off the record.)

MR KASEGUVA: We would like to receive
a copy of this proposed exhibit so we can ask questi ons.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: WI | you show it
to M. Kaseguma?

MR. KASEGUMA: | would like a copy,
pl ease.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay.

M5. MOONEY: | have three.

MR. KASEGUMA: You have three?

MS. MOONEY: Yeah.

MR. MJURPHY: Thank you.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: I f you nove on to
ot her parts of your testinony, while they | ook at the
exhibit, we can do it that way.

M5. MOONEY: | also brought ny CV that
was supposed to be in as a witness that was noted as not
present in the brief before the hearing. It explains
sone of what M. Kaseguma was asking nme yesterday, which
had to do with nmy education. If you would |like that, so
it's conplete. It was just mssing. So as an exhibit,

if you want ny CV
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THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  This is part of
the exhibit you submtted yesterday as part of the site
pl an testinony, and you just forgot to include it?

M5. MOONEY: No. This was supposed to
be in the brief and in the notion to dismss or
conplaint --

M5. HHRT: It is in the -- it was

submtted with the brief because we subnmtted two

l[ist -- it was an exhibit of w tnesses, and then we had
it -- also had a list of speakers. And this would be in
the list of exhibit of witnesses. | think that was in

t here.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  What |I'mtrying
to understand is so that document was submtted by you
as part of one of your emmil attachments?

MR. RANADE: M. Exam ner, maybe we can
truncate this?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yes.

MR. RANADE: | don't think any of the
parties have an objection to that.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Okay. Al right.
We'll put it in there then. 1In case it's not already in
the record, I'll identify it as Exhibit 48 then. That's
Ms. Mboney's CV.

(Exhi bit No. 48 marked for
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identification.)

M5. MOONEY: |'Il put a nunber 48 on the
bottom | ef t - hand corner.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  All right.

M5. MOONEY: And this is an exhibit that
was nmade reference to yesterday as having highlighting
on it that was objected --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  The enmuai |l ?

M5. MOONEY: Yes. So | brought
sonmething here that -- | seemto have failed to get the
one. Never mnd. | just got the wong one. Sorry.
That was perfectly planned and incorrectly provided.
Sorry. So then | don't knowif I'"'mallowed to ask this
or say this, but | wanted to nention that, | think of
the EIS as a parenting plan. And that the City and the
Parks and Daniels are the parents in a parenting plan,
because they're not staying together as parents.

And ny feeling is that due to the confusions
about the projects that include the artificial |ighted
turf ball field that the Gty and Parks say is not
actually a project, that it has caused confusion for the
protection of the netaphorical children, which are the
wildlife at the park.

And that is partly because the staff, M chael

Hanki nson, told me, that he is --
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M5. WEHLING |'mgoing to object on the
grounds of hearsay.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay. Overrul ed.
Hearsay is allowed. Go ahead.

M5. MOONEY: Hearsay is when | talked to
sonmeone personally, right?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  No. It's quoting
sonmeone who has spoken to you here, and that person is
not present.

M5. MOONEY: So | can say that | thought
that Parks was neutral, in that they would protect the
wildlife just as nmuch as the building. And what | think
Ms. Hirt said during her conversation recently is that
the building -- proposed Seminary building is going to
cause a significant adverse environnental inpact to the
wildlife and even the lichen and the plants, because the
ElIS -- due to the confusing nature of the two projects,
the EI' S was not done properly. Because the whole area
that will have the inpacts, due to the Sem nary
building, is not taken into conprehensive consideration.

And, as evidence of that confusing process, |
w Il say that the cumul ative inpact study that is a part
of the FEIS only addressed parking and traffic of
Sem nary building as a hotel and ball fields as an

artificial turf lighted project, which bizarrely is not
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even -- according to State Park's attorney yesterday --
Sorry -- Jodi yesterday, and according to M. Hanpson
yesterday, is not even, as | understood it, an official
proj ect .

MR. RANADE: M. Examner, I'mgoing to

object to the relevance of this testinony. The bal

field -- potential ball fields project or the interest
is not relevant. It's not part of this project.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | think
Ms. Mooney -- she's arguing that they are a cunul ative

impact. Are you al nost done with that portion?

M5. MOONEY:  Yes.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  |'1| overrule.
But that's her belief that it's a curulative inpact.

M5. HRT: Really, that's pretty nuch
it. That the Cty has the obligation as |ead agency to
properly and conprehensively cover the entire problens
that could cone as a result of the Sem nary hotel, and
they failed in doing so.

And maybe that's because we haven't even
figured out who is paying for the EIS. | don't even
know to this day if the Cty is paying for it and then
M. Daniels pays themback if he gets the hotel. | did
learn in trying --

MR, KASEGUVA: |'Il object to this line
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of comment, and it's not relevant to this proceeding,
who paid for the EIS.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yes. How is that
rel evant, howthe EISis -- you know, has an adequate
anal ysi s.

M5. MOONEY: It goes back to ny netaphor
about, if you have a divorce and you have a parenting
pl an you have a | awer who is protecting the best
interest of the children. The netaphorical children
here are the wildlife. They are not being fully
prot ected because of this confusion over how many
inpacts are in the wetlands streamball field, slash
artificially lighted turf field, which one parent, the
Park, says isn't even an official project. So the City,
t he other parent, says, W didn't cover that.

And so | don't know how we, as protectors
primarily of the wildlife and the plants and the nature
and the sanctity of the park, which exists right now,
can be content with the EIS that the City was tasked
w th doi ng.

And so they erred by omtting what needed to
be done to properly assess the inpacts -- the cumul ative
I npacts.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Right. | think

your argunent is kind of a conflict of interest

206 622 6875 | 800 8316973
production@yomreporting.com
www.yomreporting.com



N

o 0o B~ W

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

348

HEARING PROCEEDINGS, VOL 2; March 02, 2017
si tuation.

M5. MOONEY: And the cunul ative inpacts
of the biology were omtted -- or nature. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  All right. That
was nostly argunents opposed to evidence. But we still
al l ow cross-exam nation, since that's the format we have
here. | understand that the applicant wanted to cross.

MR. MJURPHY: That's right.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  She's fini shed
wi th her testinony, so go ahead.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR MJRPHY:

Q Good norning, M. Mooney.

A. Good norning.

Q Is it correct that your general objection is
to the ball field -- the artificial turf to the bal
field and the artificial lighting that's proposed for
the ball field, in your opinion?

A.  The --

Q That's a yes or no, Ms. Mooney.

A. D d you say the major?

Q Your mmjor objection relates to the ball field
and previous descriptions of what that renovation may
be?

A. It's the straw that broke the canel's back in
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nmy opi ni on.

Q So that's a yes. Thank you. You have
addressed concerns about lichen. Can | get a copy of
your CV?

Thank you. Ms. Mooney, | see that you have a
Master's in Fisheries that you obtained in 1991, and |
bel i eve you nentioned yesterday that you have not

pursued that scientific study into a profession since

t hen?

A. Correct.

Q Is lichen a fish?

A. No. It's a synbiotic relationship between an
al gae and fungus, and it grows on trees. |If the --
depending on the air quality. If it's good air
quality, you get certain lichen. |If you have pollution
inthe air, you can't even find a lichen. | don't

think you'll find Iichen anywhere near the Cty Hall.

Q So alichen is not part of your forma
education? You didn't study |ichen as part of your
fisheries degree.

A. No. No. | studied --

Q Thank you. You can follow up later on

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yeah. Just

answer yes or no, and you can el aborate when it's your

turn.
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Q (BY MR MJRPHY) D d you do any field study to
observe and quantify the amount of lichen in the
proj ect area?

A. Only casually. | proposed --

Q So, no, you didn't do a field study?

A. How do you define a field study? Wth ot her
peopl e casually on ny walks, did | wite down --

Q You don't have a definition of what a field
study is?

A. | did a qualitative field study of the Iichen
in the --

Q And by that you nmean you wal ked t hrough the
park and | ooked at things?

A. | noticed that there are lichens in the park
and | nmentioned that we should do a project with UWon
t hat .

Q Did you see any lichen surrounding the
Sem nary buil di ng?

A. | do not renenber that, actually.

Q Can | draw your attention to figure 2-3, |
believe, in the DEIS? That would be Exhibit 19 in the
core docunents bi nder

A.  Core docunents, Lodge at Sai nt Edward.

Q That's correct. So it's an image that is kind

of a house shape. There's the nain project area and
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the I egend at the bottom and then there's a yell ow box
t hat says, Potential public parking area?
A. \Wat page?
Q It's figure 2-3. It follows -- there's not a
speci fic page nunber, but | think it's 2-4.
M5. MOONEY: Thank you, David.

MR. RANADE: What book are you in?

MR MURPHY: |I'min the core docunents
book.

MR MURPHY: It's in the core docunents
binder. | believe you are in the -- Ms. Hirt, you have

t he appel l ant exhibit binder. M. Mboney, | believe
you' re | ooking at the correct exhibit.

Did you observe any lichen in this

house-shaped area in exhibit -- or on figure 2-3?
A. | did not |Iook on the Sem nary, but often
you'll get a lichen on concrete.

Q So you didn't see any?

A. | don't renmenber | ooking for or finding any or
meking it ny goal, no.

Q And previously, just a few nonments ago, you
expressed that you were concerned that the cumul ative
i npacts of the ball field, as it relates to light, are
not considered in the EIS; is that correct?

A.  The cumul ative inpacts of the Sem nary and the
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ball field, on the biological entities, is what |I'm
sayi ng was not.

Q So the plants and ani nal s?

A. R ght.

Q Can | direct your attention to page 3.3-12 of
the DEI'S, so the sane docunent you're in, just a few
pages after that. 3.3-12, it's in the wetl ands,
pl ants, and aninmals section. And at the top of that
page, it says, Indirect, slash, cunulative inpacts. Do
you see that?

A Yes.

Q I'mgoing toread it. It says, To the extent
that the proposed Lodge at Saint Edward project occurs
in the vicinity of other devel opnment projects in the
site vicinity (i.e. Bastyr University and the bal
field renovation project at Saint Edward State Park...)
-- that's the one you're speaki ng about --
(...proposed by the Gty of Kennore), it could result
in a cunulative inpact on plants and aninmals, within
the overall park are due to the overall cumulative
increase in activity within the park, specifically
i npacts fromlight, noise, and vegetation renoval

Did | read that correctly?

A Yes.

Q Are those the concerns that you nenti oned?
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A. Those are sone of the concerns, but it omtted
popul ation inpacts that go beyond noi se, vegetation
and -- it's just not specific.

Q Do you nean increased use of the park?

A. Like, overpopulation of the park. |'m saying
it's not conprehensive. | think that's what | neant by
using the word conprehensive. |'mnot saying this

isn't great, and | appreciate that it's there.

| was focusing on a portion that addressed the
curmul ati ve i npact that enphasized the traffic between
t he two.

Q You nean, parking? Foot traffic? What kind
of traffic?

A. Car traffic.

Q Car traffic. So you're concerned about the
i ncrease of activity in the park? The overall -- and
| " mquoting here -- the overall cumulative activity
within the park?

A.  Yes.

Q Thank you. Can | draw your attention to
section 3.8-4? And that's in the same docunent, the
Draft EIS. Are you there, M. Money?

A.  Yes.

Q Under the heading incorrect cunulative

i npacts, | believe it is the third full sentence. It's
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about the mddle of the paragraph. It starts with the
ball field.

A.  Yeah. The ball field renovation --

Q The ball field renovation project would al so
increase the use of the areas to the east of the site,
whi ch would result in additional |ight for nobile and
potentially stationary sources. Field lighting is
i ncluded as a proper alternative, subject to future
findi ng.

|s that one of the cumul ative inpacts you were
concer ned about ?

A.  Yes.

Q Can | draw your attention to 3.3-14 of the
sane docunent? This is the section on traffic and
par ki ng.

A Ckay.

Q Under the heading of indirect, slash
cunul ative inpacts, it says, To the extent that the
proposed Lodge of Saint Edward project occurs in the
vicinity of other devel opnent projects in the site
vicinity( i.e. Bastyr University and the ball field
renovation project at Saint Edward State Park, proposed
by the City of Kennore) it could result in a cumulative
increase in traffic within the park and the site

vicinity.
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Does that address the concern you nenti oned
about increased cunul ative inpacts fromtraffic
descri bed here?

A Yes.

MR. MJURPHY: Thank you. Nothing
further.

A. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ms. Weéhl i ng.

M5. WEHLING M. Examner, | would note
for the record that in Exhibit P-5, in the master |ist,
which is State Park's response to Citizen's, page 5,
lines 6 to 7, we identified each page of the Draft
Envi ronnmental | npact Statenent, which addresses
curmul ati ve i npacts.

And so rather than ask Ms. Mooney to go
t hrough each of those, | would just Iike to note that
they're already identified in our briefing.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay.

M5. WEHLING | do have one question for
Ms. Mooney.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. VEHLI NG
Q | would like you to estinmate the nunber of
hours you spent reviewing the Draft Environnenta

| npact St atenent?
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A. A few Not many.

M5. WEHLI NG Thank you.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  All right.
M. Kaseguma, any questions?

MR. KASEGUMA: No questi ons.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  All right.
Great. M. Money, you can have the final word.

M5. HRT: | think --

M5. MOONEY: M final word?

MR KASEGUVA:  Shoul d we take care of
the exhibit that she has proposed?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  That's a good
idea. We can do that now.

As | mentioned, it's not in the exhibit Iist.
But if the parties have no objection, | can put it in.
It's up to you.

MR. KASEGUVA: The City objects for a
nunber of reasons. First and forenost, is that we all
had to abide by your rules, which calls that the
exhi bits needed to be identified several days ago and
put on an exhibit list. And could only be excused if
the exhibit was being | ooked for or there was a rational
reason why it was not produced at the tine.

Ms. Mooney has testified that this is an

exhibit froma website and was obvi ously avail abl e at
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the tinme the exhibit |list was prepared by the appellant.

| n addi tion, however, this exhibit has flaws
init for purposes of being relevant to this proceeding.
It does not indicate who devel oped and prepared it, why
it was are prepared. Apparently, it shows a circle that
m ght be interpreted as a bald eagle's nest at one tine.
But we don't know what tinme that was.

So this exhibit is not sufficient enough for
us to analyze what it's tal king about and give it the
consideration that it mght have if it had nore
information in it.

So at this point, there's not enough
information concerning it to allowit to be admtted as
an exhibit, even if we were to ignore the rule you al
gave us.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. |'ve
al ready given Ms. Mooney an opportunity to address the
good cause. And | really don't see it here, so I'm
going to sustain the objects and excl ude the docunents.

Now, Ms. Mooney, you can -- make a final word
is maybe not a correct way to identify what you have a
right to do right now That right is to el aborate upon
answers you gave to questions you were given. |f you
feel you didn't have a chance to fully answer a

question, then nowis the tine to do it.
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M5. MOONEY: To Washington State Parks,
| just want to say that | amnot the expert that went
t hrough the Environnmental |npact Statenent. | largely
| ooked to the staff, and specifically M chael Hankinson,
and asked for his advice about how to approach such a
m nd- boggling effort, which would be to assess a
baseline study of all the animals that are at that park
before M. Daniels project cane through and before the
artificially lighted turf field that the Gty was
concom tantly piggybacking onto the Daniels project.

| relied and trusted M. Hankinson to give ne,
what | thought, was neutral advice on howto testify at
the hearings. And by the tinme | went to Lacey in
January to testify about the ball field, which I thought
was the right thing to do, that's where | finally
| earned that I was being -- | was sel f-fool ed, |
guess -- into thinking that the staff at Parks,
M . Hanki nson, was neutral because he said that he was
t he pl anner --

M5. WVEHLING |I'mgoing to object on the
grounds of hearsay. She can di scuss her opinions, her
beliefs, but she can't discuss what M. Hanki nson said
to her.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Again, this is

not a court of law. It's an -- the hearing exam ner
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rules specifically state -- and they are pretty much
uniformin just about every City and County -- that any

hearsay is generally adm ssible, so go ahead.

M5. MOONEY: | relied on our State Park
pl anner -- and even sat by himat Bastyr's |ast park
conmi ssioners neeting -- expecting that he woul d say,

Good job. You tal ked about cumrul ative inpacts and
brought up the ani nals.

And it was only way | ater when | was at Lacey
where our council nmenber was in attendance to pronote
the lighting of the artificial ball field -- that I
t hought our City council menber, who is pronoting a
little league artificially lighted ball field at, you
know, the Saint Edward Park tal king to M. Hankinson.

And when | asked M. Hanki nson the next day,
What are you tal king about? | thought that was supposed
to be a public hearing? He finally explained that there
was a grant fromthe mtigation due to the artificially
lighted ball field causing trouble for the animals, and
that there would be a grant. And | asked if he could
help with it.

Then | called the city staff nenber, Ann
Stanton, the next day. And she said that grant is only
there if the Gty gets their ball field artificially

lighted and turfed.

206 622 6875 | 800 8316973
production@yomreporting.com
www.yomreporting.com



N

o 0o B~ W

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

360

HEARING PROCEEDINGS, VOL 2; March 02, 2017

And all I'msaying is that, no, I'mnot the
expert. | did not spend a huge amount of ny time going
t hrough the Environnmental |npact Statenent. | luckily

have friends in Ms. Hrt and M. Lance, who have taken
nonths of their time. | have contributed to their --
you know, hel pi ng.

But, no, I"'mnot the expert in this. | relied
on ny State and ny Gty to do the right thing, and |
feel they have failed mserably in protecting the
animals there that are the treasure of that park. And
if M. Daniels can provide a proper hotel, conference
center with mininmal inpact that doesn't harmthe whol e
park's nature, that would be better.

But the artificially lighted turf field and
t he process of conmm ngling these projects and confusing
people like nme into driving all the way to Lacey and, in

good faith, giving testinony and seeing my owmn City is

working with the planner from State Parks, | think it's
unfair. And the aninmals will suffer, the plants wll
suffer, and the future generations will suffer if that

smal | piece of sanctity is not preserved.
And | thank the G tizens at Saint Edward Park
for keeping that hope alive.
MR KASEGUVA: M. Exam ner, | would ask

that you strike fromthe record Ms. Mooney's ranbling
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comments, the reference to a city council nenber at, |
bel i eve, a parks comm ssi on hearing.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Wl |, now, |ike
said, one of the prem ses of the SEPA policy area is a
little bit of conflict where the City is sonme kind of --
that the ball fields and the proposed renovations are
I i nked together, and then nepotismis given to one in
order to get sonething done for the other.

You know, | bet that it's very tenuous, but
"1l let themargue their belief on that point, so Il
allowit.

Anyway, are you finished Ms. Mooney?

M5. MOONEY: Yes. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ms. Hirt.

M5. HHRT: Can | just nake a commrent
based on her conversation of cunulative inpacts, and
what | was told at the scoping neeting for the DEIS? |
don't know if this is the tinme that -- because | already
made ny comments.

M5. WVEHLING M. Examiner, I'mgoing to
object. M. Hirt already had her opportunity to provide
her direct testinony.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER  Ms. Hirt is --

t hi nk she's also the one who is essentially presenting

t he appellants and organi zing all the testinony. She
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can nmake the final comments before she rests her case.
So just wap it up at this point.

VMR, RANADE: Before we switch to that

subj ect, just for the record, on Ms. Mooney's allegation

of a conflict of interest, in the hopes that we're going

to be able to finish this hearing today, | want to note
for the record, there was no allegation of a conflict of
interest in the appeals statenent. So there's no issue
t hat has been properly raised by the appellant on that
subj ect .

Not one of the 25 issues in the appeals
stat enent says anything about a conflict of interest.
And even the nost generous reading of that appeals
statenent, cannot be construed to allege a conflict of
i nterest.

And so I"'mjust trying to avoid having to put
on a case or putting -- the State and the City in the
position of putting on a case on a subject that was not
raised until, well beyond, even the 11th hour.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al right.
Ms. Hirt, did you want to respond to that at all.

M5. HHRT: No. Because |I think the
pl ace that was raised was di sm ssed yesterday. There
was somnet hi ng

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. So you're
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essentially -- you're not going -- you' re saying the
SEPA is not going to pursue that argunent.

M5. H RT: The statenent, and | would
have to find the statenent that |led to one of the
exhibits we submitted. But that statenent was in the
appeal part that was dism ssed yesterday.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Wl |, put it this
way, | haven't seen enough evidence that there was a
conflict of interest that affected the validity of the
FEI'S in the case.

The fact that it wasn't raised in the appeal
issues --it's an issue that goes towards the wei ght of
the evidence that applies to each particular issue. |
don't know necessarily it had to be raised, they're just
guestioning the strength of the evidence on sone key
points. But | just didn't see there was enough evi dence
presented to establish a conflict of interest anyway.
So | don't think that needs to be further pursued.
Those will be ny findings of that, assum ng you're not
going to be addressing anynore conflict of evidence at
this point.

M5. HHRT: | have an opinion about it,
but | don't have --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Evi dence.

M5. H RT: The evidence | have is not
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enough to bring forth.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay. And that's
fine. | just don't see it would be very constructive to
go down that path.

M5. HRT: You already have the evidence
| had evidence to that.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yes. And | saw
that evidence. | would say that | don't have enough
information to say that the evidence presented at the
FEI' S was affected by a conflict of interest, so we'll
| eave it at that.

So, Ms. Hirt, your final conments?

MR. RANADE: M. Examner, if we're
getting new testinmony fromM. Hrt -- the schedul e has
closing argunents later. So if that's what she's doing,
she should follow the schedule. [|f she's applying new
testinmony, | understand and I'mokay with it, but then
we shoul d be given opportunity to cross-exam ne her on
t he new testinony.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  That's fi ne.
That's perfectly fine.

M5. HRT: | only had one comment about
the scope. Should | say it now?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Let's get it

done. We've probably spent nore tine debating whet her
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you should say it, just say it.

M5. HRT: It's a quick statenent. In
t he scopi ng neeti ng about what goes into a Draft EIS,
what can be included -- you nay say this is hearsay --
but this is a conversation | had with M. Hanki nson
about what goes in it --

MR. RANADE: Again, objection; hearsay,
grounds. You can still say it. | just wanted to get it
on the record.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yeah. Putting it
in the record.

M5. HHRT: Anyway, he said cunul ative
effects. | said, Is this the tine to tal k about
cunul ative effects? And he said, Yes. And | said, So
you nean that this EISis the time that we can talk
about the cunul ative effects with the ball fields and
mention the cunul ative effects that the ball fields and
the project will have? And he said, Yes.

So we did put things in our scoping based on
that. There is cumulative -- the cunmul ative inpacts of
both projects because that was what | was told. | want
to clarify that.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  That's it for the
SEPA comment s?

M5. HRT: That's it.
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THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Anyone want to
cross that? Geat. W're done with the SEPA
appel l ants' presentation at this point. And now we'l|l
nove on to the, | believe, it was the
appl i cants presentati on.

MR. RANADE: M. Exami ner, we ask for a
t en-m nute break.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Sure. Let's do
that. We'Ill take a 10-m nute break.

(Break taken from 10:45 a.m to 10:54

a.m)

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  The court
recorder is back on. W're still at March 2, 2017
CSP16-0077. W have now noved on fromthe SEPA
appel l ants' portion of the SEPA appeal to the
applicants' presentation.

MR. RANADE: Thank you, M. Exam ner.
W would like to begin with a notion to dismss sone of
the issues/statenments that were presented in the appeal
statenent in full, and to -- I"'mgoing to call it --
narrow t he scope of a couple of the other
i ssues/statenents. And |'Il elaborate in a second.

The purpose and the real reason | want to do
this is that if we can narrow i ssues on which the

appel |l ant has presented no evi dence or argunent
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what soever during the hearing, that will allow us to
excuse at |east three w tnesses today, and --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER.  Ckay.

MR. RANADE: Avoid testinony on five
different topics. That's the reason we're asking for
this. The issues/statenents on which the appell ant
presented no evidence at all and no argunent are as
fol |l ows:

| ssue nunber 4, which dealt with trail traffic
and specifically a concern of the erosion on the trail;
ground water, that's issue nunber 14; del ayed acti on,
which is issue nunber 15. And | would al so add t hat
there's a specific section of the Draft EIS that tal ks
about del ayed action, if there is any problemw th that;
par agraph 10, which tal ks about conpliance with the
State Park's | ease; and paragraph 16, which alleges --
makes al |l egation of the range of alternatives
consi dered; and paragraph 20, which was an all egation
dealing with the federal |and and water conservation
f unds.

So, again, we're asking, at this point, for
the hearing exam ner to dismss the allegations and
issues 4, 10, 15 -- I'msorry -- | spoke out of order.
4, 10, 14, 15, 16, and 20.

Further, we're asking the hearing examner to
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narrow t he scope of issues set out in -- I'mgoing to
say paragraphs of issues/statenents 1 and 2. Those are
t he i ssues/statenments that you authorized the appellants
to rewite. They ended up, as far as we can tell,
they're identical. | think they were literally a cut
and paste, so it's the sane issue.

And within that issue, there were a nunber of
topics that the appellants raised. W heard no
testimony and no argunent and no docunents on the
following issues within the rewitten issues 1 and 2:
Not hi ng about drai nage; nothing about air quality;
not hi ng about public services to the projects, so |I'm
tal king police, fire, utilities; nothing about flooding
and fl oodways; nothing about soil erosion; and, again,
not hi ng about ground water.

And so we woul d ask just to confirm and narrow
the scope of what's alleged in issues 1 and 2. That
those are also off the table. And if the hearing
examner will take those off the table now, because
there was no evidence and argunent. And, as | said, at
| east three witnesses we can send honme, hours before
t hey thought they were going to be able to go hone.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ms. Hirt, you get
to address that request. This is not a tinme to present

evidence if you didn't before. |It's atinme to argue
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that there is evidence and the issue should still be
consi der ed.

M5. WEHLING M. Exam ner, before we
get there, could | note that State Parks joins in that
notion and would also Iike to point out that there was
sonme argunent beyond the notice of appeal, it was in the
appeal titled Susan's Appeal, which, Your Honor,

di sm ssed yesterday.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay.

MR. KASEGUVA: The City concurs with the
comments nmade by the State.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: kay. G eat.

M5. HIRT: | would have troubl e arguing
with this. This was put in because sonme people were
very concerned about the issues. However, they are not
here to speak about -- and it is ny mstake that |
forgot to bring up the | and and water conservation fund.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Okay. | think
that's. Onh --

M5. HHRT: On the other hand, Dr. Bain
is telling nme that he did bring that up. And now | do
remenber it was in his testinony.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Wi ch i ssue?

M5. HRT: The |land and water

conservation issue, 20. He did tal k about the | and and
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wat er conservation fund.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | don't recall
What did Dr. Bain say about that?

M5. WEHLING | can address that.

THE HEARING EXAM NER: | re-listened to
this testinony this norning, and | don't recall that.

MR BAIN. | nentioned the |and and
wat er conservation fund gave a federal nexus, which
nmeant that there should have been section seven
consul tation --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | thought it was
about section 7. | think issue 20 is concerned about
t he conversi on.

MR. BAIN. No, | didn't address anything
about the conversion.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: My under st andi ng
of 20 is -- let's see.

MR. RANADE: That's our understandi ng as
well. That's why we included it in the notion.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yeah. Ckay. So
and -- Ms. Hirt, | appreciate the fact that you are
willing to concede this. | think it will save a |ot of
time and hel p us focus on the issues that are inportant
to you.

M5. H RT: | have docunentati on. | have
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contacted the RCU for public information. But | have

not submtted it, because you would probably call it
hear say.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Well, it's not a
hearsay issue. |It's an issue if it's in the record for
me to review |If you' re conceding there is no evidence

on the these issues, which is fine, we have plenty of
other things to deal with

M5. HRT: OQher than being in -- we did
not wite in our brief about it, |I agree, and so | have
no ground to stand on to keep it there.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al right. So
"Il grant the request then to take out issues 1, 2, 4,
10, 14, 15, 16, and 20. |Is that the correct list?

MR. RANADE: And we asked that you
narrow i ssues 1 and 2.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ch, |I'm sorry.
Yeah. | said take out 1 and 2. | should say narrow it,
in ternms of taking out issues pertaining to drainage,
air quality, police, flooding, soil erosion, and ground
wat er. Ckay.

MR. RANADE: Thank you. And just to
clarify, did you include 16 as di sm ssed?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | think | did.

But we'll say again, 16.

206 622 6875 | 800 8316973
production@yomreporting.com
www.yomreporting.com



N

o 0o B~ W

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

HEARING PROCEEDINGS, VOL 2; March 02, 2017

372

M5. HIRT: 16, yes.
MR. RANADE: Thank you. So with that,
we'll call Ron Wight to the stand.
You're one of the witnesses that is excused
then. Have a good day.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER.  Sir, have you
been sworn in?
THE WTNESS: Yes, | have. Yesterday.
MR. MJRPHY: Good norning, M. Wight.
For the record, this is Andy Murphy for the applicant.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER.  Can we get a
spel l'ing of your nane, sir, for the record?
THE WTNESS: Ron Wight. R-o0-n
Wr-i-g-h-t.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR MJRPHY:

Q M. Wight, | believe you testified in the
site plan hearing, and you described your professional
experience. Can you briefly remnd us of what that is?

A We've been in practice -- I'"'mthe principal in
my own practice. |It's been in business for the past 25
years. W have a cumul ative total of about $400
mllion worth of work that we perfornmed -- got a
comm ssion off of. | think |I nentioned that.

We do historic restoration projects, housing
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projects, restaurants. W also do all kinds of
speci al i zed projects.

Q And this is architecture?

A. Architecturally rel ated, yes.

Q And | understand your work has garnered sone
prai se, won sone awards. Can you address sone of the
awards with regard to historical preservation?

A. W received a national historic award for the
restoration of the Union Station. W received a state
award for the restoration of the Pioneer Square
pergola. And | have a national award from a house
project that we did about eight years ago.

Q Congratul ati ons.

A. Thank you.

Q Your involvenent with the project was
designing the plans for the Sem nary?

A. Correct.

Q And did you design the project in accordance
with the Departnent of the Interior standards?

A. Yes. W had those as a criterion within the
background of what we were putting together.

Q Howfamliar are you with the Departnent of
the Interior standards?

A. W have been follow ng the standards now since

we started working with the historic restoration work
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and have successfully obtained six tax credit projects

which require very intimte know edge in order to

obtain the tax records. These are federal tax credits.

| would say it's very intimate in know edge.

Q And over how |l ong have you been working with
t henf

A. This has been since approxi mtely 1996.

Q \What is the purpose of those standards?

A. The purpose of the standards is to set --
their guidelines are to set criteria for the
restoration of historic buildings, districts, historic

conponents, essentially. | say that because it's not

just buildings. It's also neighborhoods and districts.

It outlines a nmethodol ogy for ensuring that
the buildings are -- and districts and historic
elements -- are restored in a manner that will allow
themto essentially be viable for the next 100 years.

Q You nentioned their guidelines. So am|
correct in interpreting that they don't require strict
conpl i ance?

A. Correct.

Q It can be | oosened necessarily for the
particul ar project?

A Yes.

Q You were here yesterday during the public
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comment portion of the site plan; is that right?

A Yes, | was.

Q And to the extent it's relevant to the SEPA
appeal, | believe there were sonme comments about the
Nuns' Garden and whet her that woul d be devel oped, how
that would affect it. Do you have any awareness of
what the current status of the Nuns' Garden is?

A. My -- when the Nuns' Garden was outlined or
identified in the report, it was identified as
overgrown and virtually nonexistent as far as being
able to tell where it was. And | have not actually
seen any notion of it. In ny walk around the site, |
didn't notice it was over there in that area.

Q Gven the overgrown nature of the Nuns'
Garden, would the Departnent of the Interior standards
strictly apply to that area?

A. Well, there are instances where you woul d have
ar cheol ogi cal aspects of sonething that was critical to
the historic nature of the site. M professional
opi ni on woul d be, no, the Nuns' Garden woul d not be of
that nature as far as the historical significance.

Q Is it your opinion that the project, as
proposed, is in conpliance as it relates to the Nuns
Gar den?

A. Yes.
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Q And regarding the area surrounding the
Sem nary, and specifically the parking structure, it's
nmy understandi ng that the parking structure would
repl ace where there is currently paved parking. And
Alternative 1 would replace that with a green top that
woul d be at grade; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q Soif Alternative 1 is constructed, as the
| ease requires, where park users currently wal k over
pavenent, they would be able to wal k over vegetation,
some | andscapi ng i nst ead?

A. Correct.

Q And woul d that design be consistent with the
Department of the Interior standards?

A. Yes. It's quite common to actually have
under ground buil di ngs, essentially, to allow for the

above ground building to remain intact and in better

visual condition, essentially, for the viewpoint of the

hi storic aspect of it.

Q And | would Iike to change gears a little bit
and tal k about building capacity. In your profession,
as an architect, do you work with capacity for spaces?

A. Yes. Al the tine.

Q Can you tell nme the difference between fire

code capacity and general facility operation capacity?
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A.  The international building code, which is the
nodel code that is used by all jurisdictions, it's
adopted by the state of Washington, uses criteria to
determ ne how nmany people are in the room And it is a
very broad natured nunber that has been shown to work
over various -- every use possible, essentially.

So there is a nunber that is used that is,
essentially, 50 people, and that when you have 50
people in a room you need to add nore life safety code
issues to that room And there are genera
cal cul ations as to how nany people constitute uses of a
room based upon a use. So an office use, each person
woul d be a 100 square feet; in an assenbly, each person
woul d be 15 square feet. This nunber is used as a
means for determning the life safety requirenents that
are built into that roomor that space or into the
entire building.

Q And that differs fromfunctional capacity how?

A. There is no criteria as far as what you do
with the roomand use of the roomfunctionally. They
are conpletely separate. So the code does not
contenplate, for instance, if you have an office space
that the code says you can only have 40 people in the
room there's nothing that says you couldn't have 45 or

50 after you're finished. It doesn't go back and | ook
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at the actual nunber.

And so there's no correlation between the code
nunber and the actual nunber, except in one instance
where you are allowed to count the nunber of seats in
the restaurant in order to determ ne the maximum
occupancy of the restaurant.

Q So am|l correct in ny understanding that a
fire code capacity would be nmuch higher than the actua
capacity, say in a space |like a conference roomin the
Sai nt Edward Lodge was bei ng operat ed?

A.  Very much so.

Q Mich | ower?

A Yes. Particularly in a cunulative total,
because you woul d have -- the code contenpl ates each
room separately and then determ nes the nmaxi mum f or
each room Wiich is no relationship to whether you
woul d use each roomat the sane tinme or not.

Q So when you're designing a space for
conf erence space, you presune that some roons will be
enpty while others will be used for the sane
conf erence?

A. That is one criteria that functionally we are
often given. Although it's really dependent on what
the functional programis, not the building life safety

code of the buil ding.
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Q And you were here yesterday when M. Lance was
testifying about his concerns regarding the capacity at
Sai nt Edward Lodge; is that right?

A Yes, | was.

Q And were the nunbers he referred to the fire
code capacity?

A. My understanding upon listening to that, yes,
t hose were fire code.

Q How often would the Saint Edward Lodge be at
the fire code capacity when operating a conference?
Wuld it be, in your opinion, a likely occurrence?

A. It would be, I would say, highly unlikely.

M5. HRT: I'msorry. | didn't get
t hat .

Q | believe you said it would be highly

unlikely; aml correct?

A. Highly unlikely, yes.

M5. HRT: I'msorry. | didn't get
the -- | need clarification of what it was.

MR. MURPHY: | believe | asked sonething
to the extent of -- Madam Reporter, can you read back ny
gquestion?

M5. HHRT: | think I didn't -- | need

clarification of the question, please.

MR. MURPHY: Madam court reporter, can
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you read back my question?

(Discussion off the record while the

court reporter finds the question.)

MR. MJURPHY: | asked a question about
how i kely the conference woul d operate at fire code
capacity.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Is that how you
recall the question, M. Wight?

MR. RANADE: Can you just nake sure the
court reporter is caught up.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  She's back on

A. The question, as | understood it, how |ikely
woul d it be that the maxi rum nunber of individuals
desi gnated for each roomwould actually be in each room
all at the sanme tinme. And ny response is that's highly
unl i kel y.

Q (BY MR MJRPHY) Moving on to the broader
design of the Semnary building. | understand that
you' ve done sone cal cul ati ons about the square footage
of | odgi ng space as opposed to conference space; is
t hat correct.

A.  Yes, | have.

Q And what's the square footage for |odging
space, approxi mately?

A.  The | odgi ng space is approxi mately 35, 000
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square feet.

Q And what's the square footage for neeting room
and conference space?

A.  16,000. And I'm excluding the restaurant and
t he support space. 16, 000.

Q Soif ny math is correct, the square footage
for |lodging space is nore than twice what is allocated
for meeting room and conference space?

A. Correct.

MR. MJURPHY: | have nothing further at
this point.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al right. Do
you have any questions, M. Whling?
MS. VEHLI NG  No.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al l right.
M . Kaseguma, any questions for this w tness?
MR. KASEGUMA: No questi ons.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Hirt.
M5. HHRT: May Peter ask the questions?
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  That's fi ne.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LANCE:

Q M. Wight, were you famliar with the seating

chart from Cedar Brook Lodge that was Exhibit 2 that

was presented yesterday?
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A. I'"'mnot aware of it.
May | hand it to you?

A, Yes.

MR. RANADE: There's a notebook up
there, too. Just so we can all keep track.

MR. MJRPHY: It's the appellants’
Exhi bit 2.

A. | have Exhibit 2.

Q (BY MR LANCE) It should be a seating chart
for the Cedar Brook Lodge. Does that appear -- that's
fromtheir website. And they've given capacities for
t he various roons for the conference spaces. Are they
advertising their fire capacities or are they
advertising their functional use for those roons?

A. | see in the |ast page here an item --

Q That's nmy math work. So that sunmarizes those
tables that you're looking at. Big Cedar, first floor,
Bi g Cedar, second floor, parlors and dens.

A. So the nunbers that | see here, | guess, in
response to your question, appear to |ist the nmaximm
nunber that are maxi num-- for instance, it says
cocktail seating and it says 300. | would say that's
t he maxi mum nunber of individuals that could be in a
cocktail seating arrangenent. And then says, classroom

seating, 150 for the sane room or conference seating
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72 for the same room

Q Are they advertising fire codes or functional
realistic visitation for these roons in those various
settings?

A | wuld say it's very rare --

Q Please answer the question. Are these fire
code m ninunms or the advertised nunbers for --

A. | have no way of know ng that.

Q Thank you. | have one other question, and
this comes fromthe appellants' brief. And this is
somet hi ng maybe we' Il speak nmore directly to. |I'm
going to hand you this, it's our nunber 12.

MR. RANADE: He's got the docunent in
front of him [If you want to direct himto the exhibit.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Is this your
traffic study you' re tal ki ng about?

MR LANCE: No. It's our brief.

MR. RANADE: It's behind -- it's brief
number 2.

A. | have Dbrief nunber 2.

Q (BY MR LANCE) Brief 2, page 5, under nunber
12, fromthe FEI'S Sem nary building. The proponent
proposes to rehabilitate the existing Sem nary buil ding
for use of a |lodge-type hotel. The internationally

recogni zed historic character of the proposed project
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woul d i nclude renovation of the interior of the
building to adapt the facility for use as a | odge -- as
| odgi ng and | odgi ng support. Projected up to 100 guest
roons woul d be provided in addition, the building would
i ncl ude neeting, conference roons, a total of
approximately 16, 600 square feet for approxi mately 550
peopl e.

Is that a fire code nunber that was produced
or is that an actual functional nunber of expected
visitors in the conference room application?

A. Was this is a nunber that cane from our
preparation of docunments? Are you quoting --

Q This presumably cane from Daniels -- that they
provided this information about their project. And
then they go on to tal k about --

A. M understanding in reviewing this is that
that's a functional nunber that's been presented there.
| say if you add it up -- sanme as | just -- quickly
| ooking at the nunmbers that | saw in the Cedar Brook
that you just showed nme, it | ooks Iike you could al nost
have 1, 000 people in that building based upon the
maxi mum occupancy of every single room

So here I'm 1l ooking at 16,000 square feet,
even at approximately 15 occupants per room you could

have far nore than 500 that would be allowed fromthe
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fire code.
Q So these are functional nunbers -- nost |ikely
functional nunbers in your opinion?
A. Correct.
MR. LANCE: Thank you very rmuch
You ask that question.
BY MR HI RT:
Q Well, I have a question based on --
MR. MJURPHY: W object to nore than one
person questioning per party.
M5. HRT: That's okay.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER° M. Lance, you
can ask the question.

M5. HHRT: W just need to confer for a

guesti on.
MR. LANCE: Can | ask the question?
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yes. Ask the
guesti on.
BY MS. HI RT:
Q M question is just based on -- | have a

couple things. But one is based on the 35,000 square
feet of |odging and 16,000 square feet of conference.
That neans that based on a very quick cal cul ati on here,
45 percent of this is -- that doesn't conme out right.

Excuse ne. One nonent, please.
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45 percent is for conference. So does that
sound -- is that what you're saying?

A.  No. The nunber | gave you -- the 16,000 does
not include nechani cal space, support space, restaurant
space, or kitchen space, or the |ounge space adjacent
to the restaurant. So there is a significant anmount of
square footage that is not in these nunbers that | gave
you.

Q Correct. | agree. But of the lodging, | take
that to be hotel roons?

A. Correct.

Q And then the conference, the 16,000, so when
you' re conparing the nunber of |odging roons to
conference space, the conference space is 46 percent of

| odgi ng conference conbined. Wuld you agree with

t hat ?

A No. Wll, | see -- it's a one third, two
thirds ratio, | guess. So |I'mnot sure if it's 45
percent. |'mnot calculating right here.

Q | used ny calculator, so that's what | got

twice. But, anyway, that does show there's a |ot of
conference space here based on the | odging -- anount of
| odgi ng space?

THE HEARING EXAM NER: |Is that a

question, Ms. Hirt?
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M5. HRT: Yes, it is.

Q (BY Ms. H RT) Does that show?

A.  In ny professional opinion in designing
simlar facilities, no. It's actually quite rel evant
to the size of the entire project that you woul d have
that portion of spaces that would be there.

Q Since you're the architect, and I don't have a
consulting architect, could you please tell nme what is
t he standard of conference space -- square footage of
conference space per hotel room when you're designing a
hot el ?

A. It's entirely based on the functional
requi renents that are presented by the client as far as
how much they would |i ke to have that usage as part of
their hotel.

And if we are working on a historic hotel in
the mddle of the urban city, oftentines there's |ess
opportunity for that, particularly if they have an
adj acent facility they can actually use with that
facility.

It's entirely dependent on the operator how
much space is dedicated to conference versus hotel

Q Wen you're tal king about an adjacent
facility, you're tal king about a different building

that is adjacent to the hotel ?
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A. Yes. For instance, a convention center.

Q Yes. | understand. This does not have that.
So based on -- if you're building -- so what you're
telling neis -- and | just want a yes or no -- that

how much conference space goes into a project that

you' re renovating or designing, depends on the

person -- the developer, if they want a | ot of
conference -- in other words, there's not an industry
st andar d?

A.  Yes.

Q Before this, | gave a -- the only industry
standard | could find -- and | |ooked at that -- and |

was wondering what is an industry standard, not a
devel oper -- not depending on the devel oper -- if the
devel oper did not tell you, what would be your industry
st andar d?

MR. MJURPHY: W object to
m scharacteri zi ng previ ous testinony.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Can you repeat
the question, Ms. Hirt?

Q (BY M. HHRT) I just want to know what the

i ndustry standard -- if |I'mbuilding a hundred-room
hotel, what would be the industry standard for how much
conference space | would want to allowin my hotel ?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ckay.

206 622 6875 | 800 8316973
production@yomreporting.com
www.yomreporting.com



N

o 0o B~ W

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

HEARING PROCEEDINGS, VOL 2; March 02, 2017

389

MR MURPHY: M. Exam ner, that would be
a feasibility report not an industry standard, and those
are different things.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER.  Ckay.

MR. MJURPHY: The feasibility report
woul d be as it applies to a specific project, not an
i ndustry standard that applies to all projects.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER. Well, 1'I1] et
the witness explain that then in response.

M5. HI RT: Because | don't understand
t hi s.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yeah. If there's
no such thing as an industry standard, |et us know.

A. My understanding, froman architectural design
point of view, there is no such thing as an industry
standard. It's an econom c question. And the choice
of whether or not to provide the conference roons is
based upon the operator's decisions, based upon
regardi ng the economc viability of the project.

And it, of course, would nmake sense not to
provide themif no one would ever use them And the
same woul d be said, if you knew that you had a market
for them you would provide them This is the kind of
decision that's given or provided to us prior to us

begi nni ng a desi gn.
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We are, essentially, given the information as
to what is appropriate or desired to be wthin the
project, and then we put it in the project. W don't
make the decision as to whether there would be
conference roons or not. And, again, that would be an
i ndi vi dual devel oper or owner decision, not ours.

Q (BY M. HHRT) | understand that. | want to
know i f there was a guideline you go by, a rule of
t hunb, that you mght go by if I conme into you and say,
| want to build a hundred-room hotel. | want
conference space. Can you give ne what is the rule of
thunmb, is there a rule of thumb, on how nuch conference
space you would put in that hotel ?

A. I'"'mnot aware of a guideline.

Q Okay. There is not one. There's another
thing I want to nmention. Have you been to the Nuns
Garden? You said you went. Wen did you go?

A. | have wal ked the site, both around the
bui l di ng and then around all of the adjacent buil dings,
and even through the trails. Wthin the last -- the
last tine | was there was probably three nonths ago.

But | think the last tinme | was outside wal king was si X
nmont hs ago.

Q So you're not aware that this fall there was a

huge clean up in the Nuns' Garden, and it's no | onger
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overgrown. This was the effort of volunteers at the
par k?

A.  I'mnot aware of that.

Q Okay. So that -- when you sawit, it was
overgrown. But now, according to volunteers who worked
on this, it has been cleaned up since you were there?

A. | think nmy statenent is | didn't observe it.
| didn't even see it.

Q Right. | understand that. Those are -- |et
me see. That was ny question on the Nuns' Garden.
Okay. The other question | have is, we were -- it's
based on a hundred roons and the ampbunt of conference
space in this hotel. Wuld it not take nore people

staying at the Lodge than those staying in the |odge to

fill conference roonms, or to use conference roons
effectively for the space. You have 100 roons. | have
attended many conferences and -- that doesn't mnean
you' Il have 200 people at a conference. So based on

the | arge nunber of roons, my opinion is conference
menbers -- people will cone fromlocal, not just hotel

guests. Wuld you agree with that?

A. | guess, |I'm being asked a functional
question. | don't know that | would agree or disagree
with that since it's not ny expertise. | design

bui | di ngs.
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Q But this hotel conference center has nore
capacity than -- for conferences than that of just
hot el guests -- accommopdati ng hotel guests. Wuld you
agree with that?

A. No. | have been -- nyself, been to a nunber
of conferences in what | would characterize as resort
areas where the entire conference in the resort was the
group of people at the hotel and that was it.

Only fromny own personal experience, | would
say, no, that's not the case. That, in fact, a
facility simlar to the one proposed could easily be a
standal one facility that is not reliant upon outside
guests.

Q But that's your personal experience, that's

not your --
A. Right. 1'man architect.
Q | know you're an architect. My question,

t hough, is based on a hundred-room hotel, there is nore
excess capacity of conference space than there is
allowed -- than just the hotel guests? So you could
have a | ocal conference and hotel -guest conference at
t he sane tinme?

A. That, again, is nore of a functional decision
on how the building is used than actual use.

Q But there's enough space to do that?
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A. Theoretically, yes. There would be.

Q Yes. GCkay. Thank you. So there is enough

space to have a | ocal conference and just -- not just

l[imted to hotel -- people staying at the hotel. Ckay.
M5. HRT: | think that's all ny

guesti ons.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. Al right.

Back to the applicants for redirect.
MR, MJRPHY:  Yes.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR MJRPHY:
Q M. Lance drew your attention to a section in
this brief where they talk about nmaxi num capacity.
That was on page 5 of, | believe, it's brief 2.
A | got it.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  It's S13, is the
exhi bit nunber.
Q And ny question for you is, How likely would
it be that there would be hundred percent occupancy of
all the space with no overlap of the guests using that

space?

A Again, | would say it would be highly unlikely

init would -- the anmobunt of support space in the
buil ding would likely be taxed, restroons, et cetera,

and so forth.
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Q M second question is in response to the
unsubstantiated claimthat the Nuns' Garden has been
rehabilitated. |If that is the case, would it change
your opinion about whether the project conplies with
departnment interior standards as it would affect the
Nuns' Gar den?

A No. And if | can el aborate?

Q Sure.

A. The guidelines are witten -- particularly in
the instance of adapted reuse -- to allow for a -- |
won't call it a sacrifice -- that for the good of the

whol e, there is often the need to take away sone aspect
that is historic.

And | think, an exanple | use all the tinme, is
a building where MOHAI is now that we worked on where
there was a grant -- this is down in South Lake
Union -- there was a grant to provide a greenroomon a
historic building. And the greenroom would be the
funding to carry the whole entire project forward. And
the State preservation officer agreed and actual ly
stated to us that it was -- in the instance of one
creating the benefit for the other, it was okay that
sacrifices be nade.

And so the point of that is that oftentines

you need do -- you have to sacrifice sonething in order
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to get the entire project through. And that applies to
life safety issues and to a | ot of nodern day things
t hat you have to do to make a building from 1931 code
conpl i ant.
So sacrificing an entity of a small entity of
a larger picture is certainly within reason within the
Nat i onal Park Service guidelines.
Q So there are no requirenents in the Departnent
of the Interior standards? They are just guidelines?
A. They're just guidelines. There are no
requi renents.
MR. MJRPHY: Thank you. Nothing
further.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Thank you,

M. Wight. | appreciate your testinony. Next w tness.

MR MJURPHY: We would like to cal
Jessica Logan. But given she is a State Parks w tness,
we think it's appropriate for Ms. Wehling to do that
di rect evidence, while reserving our ability to cal
addi ti onal w tnesses.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Certainly.
Ms. Logan, have you been sworn in?

THE WTNESS: | have.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MS. VEHLI NG
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Q Wuuld you please provide your title and a
brief job description for the record?

A. | amthe environnmental program manager for
State Parks and the SEPA-responsible official.
oversee all of the SEPA decisions that we nmake at the
state level, and | coordinate regul atory conpliance
t hroughout the state.

Q So in the interest of sufficiency, |I'mgoing
to point you to a few of the docunments. | would like
to start with what's been identified in the big black

bi nder as Exhibit No. 13. And | would like to direct

you to pages 3 to 4 of that exhibit. | would just like
for you -- are you there?
A Yes.

Q Look at that and say, Does that do an accurate
description of the actions that the State has taken to
repair and maintain Saint Edward State Park since it
was acquired in 1977?

A, Yes, it does.

Q And if you go a few pages back to pages 11
t hrough 17, does that provide a nore thorough summary
of the actions taken by the State?

A.  Yes, it does.

Q And nowif you |l ook at page 6 of that sane

exhibit, which is Exhibit 13, it identifies the annual
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mai nt enance cost for Saint Edward State Park. Could
you identify what those are?

A. For managenent options?

Q The annual nmaintenance cost. And then if you
woul d briefly discuss sone of those different costs
that go with the various managenent options.

A.  On page 6?

Q Yes, nm'am

A. Tabl e one?

Q Yes, nma'am

A. So the adaptive reuse and |lease is $8, 912, 000,
pl us ongoi ng operational costs. To nothball the
property, would be $1.4 mllion per decade. The
no-action option would be $100,000 a year. A partial
dernolition option would be $1,280,000. That would be a
one-time expense. The full denolition option would be
t he sane, $1, 280,000, which is a one-time expense. And
then to vacant the prem ses, to vacate the building
$26, 000.

Q Does Parks have an unlimted budget?

A.  No, they do not.

Q Wuld these costs be significant inpacts to
Par k' s budget ?

A.  Very much so, yes.

Q The next question |I'mgoing to ask you about
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is the CAMP, the 2008 CAMP. Can you turn to Exhibit 26
in the sane binder? Can you descri be CAWP?

A. A CAW, which is a classification and | and
managenent plan, is a plan that State Parks does for a
park or regional area of parks that provides a
| ong-term boundary. And it's basically our internal
zoni ng docunents, so it provides classifications for
appropriate activities in different areas of the park.
And al so provi des a managenent plan for issues that
wer e brought up during the CAMP pl anni ng process by the
publi ¢ and ot her stakehol ders.

Q Wien was this CAMP adopt ed?

A.  This CAMP was adopted in October 20, 2008.

Q Did Parks receive stakehol ders input on the
CAMP before it adopted it?

A Yes, it did.

Q On page 2, | asked Ms. Hirt about this
earlier, is that the list of advisory comnmttee nenbers
t hat provided that input?

A Yes, it is.

Q Could you just describe, generally, the type
of different stakeholders that were invited to
participate in this project?

A. W have adjacent |andowners, private property

owners. We have -- we have Park staff. W have a park
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conmmi ssioner on this list. W've got soneone fromthe
union on this list. W have city staff, tribal nenbers
were invited to participate -- the Mickl eshoot Tri be.
Ctizens for Saint Edward's participated, a | ocal

nei ghbor hood associ ation, and Friends of Saint Edwards.
Oh, as well as the Audubon Society and Bastyr

Uni versity.

Q Wuuld you describe that as a diverse group of
st akehol ders and representing the diverse interest for
the park as a whol e?

A Yes, | would.

Q | would like you to | ook at Appendi x A, which
is on page 29 of the CAMP. You said that the CAMP acts
Iike a zoning code and there's different
classifications. 1s the Seminary building in the
heritage classification?

A Yes, it is.

Q And could you describe what the heritage
classification includes?

A Wuld you like nme to read this?

Q | would.

A. Heritage areas are designated for
preservation, restoration, and interpretation of unique
and unusual archeol ogical, historical, scientific

and/or cultural features in traditional cultural
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properties which are of statew de and nati onal
significance.

Q Now, are the ball fields also in the heritage
category or in the recreation category?

A. | believe -- I'"mnot sure.

Q Are there different categories of
classification on the park as a whol e?

A.  Yes, there are.

Q And is the eastern half of the property in the
resource recreation classification?

A Yes, it is.

Q Is that a different sort of use than the
heritage cl assification?

A Yes, it is.

Q And is the western half of the property in the
natural forest classification?

A Yes, it is.

Q Is that also a different classification than
the heritage classification?

A Yes, it is.

Q Wuld each of those classifications be
described and identified on page 29 of the CAWP?

A.  Yes, they are.

Q So as you're aware, there were sone

all egations that the Sem nary proposal was not
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consistent wwth the CAMP. | would like to direct you
to pages 17 and 18 of that docunent where it identifies
11 different goals. |'mnot going to ask you about
these one at a tine. |I'mgoing to ask you about them
in the way that the appellants have classified their
concerns.

So I"'mgoing to start with the concern that
the Sem nary is subordinate to the use of the remai nder
of the park. Wuld you describe this Sem nary as the
dom nate use of the property?

A. No, it's not.

Q How many users are there in the park for the
Sem nary versus the rem nder of the park?

A. The mpjority -- the vast majority of the users
in the park, at this tinme, are for the rest of the
par k.

Q And so we've heard a | ot about the nunber of
roons and the use of the conference space. And, in
your opinion, even if the Sem nary was operating at
full capacity, would that exceed the nunber of public
uses for the recreational portion of the park?

A. No, it would not.

Q So one of the other concerns identified by the
appel lants was priority needed to be given to outdoor

recreation. Did Daniels dedicate space in the Sem nary
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buil ding to outdoor recreation?

A Yes, it did.

Q Is there currently space in the building
dedi cated to outdoor recreation?

A.  No, there's not.

Q So the Daniels proposal would increase space
dedi cated to outdoor recreation after the proposal is
conpl et ed?

A Yes.

Q WII the proposal for the Sem nary buil di ng
rehabilitation result in a decrease of outdoor
recreation for the public in any way?

A No.

Q Did Parks have any other options to use this
buil ding solely for outdoor recreation?

A.  None that were viable.

Q So Il'mgoing to talk about the next concern
rai sed by the appellants which has to do with limts of
public access to the main floor.

s the use of the upper floors for the guest
rooms consistent with the historical use of the
bui | di ng?
A Yes, it is.
Q Could you just briefly describe what those

roons on the upper floors have been used for over tine?

206 622 6875 | 800 8316973
production@yomreporting.com
www.yomreporting.com



N

o 0o B~ W

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

HEARING PROCEEDINGS, VOL 2; March 02, 2017

403

A. Those roons were created as dormroons for
students. W have had Park staff in them That is ny
under st andi ng of the use of those floors.

Q How much of the building is currently open to
t he public?

A. At this nonent, none, except for by
appoi nt ment .

Q And so by appointnent, is there a fee required
to use the building?

A. No. There is not a fee for tours that I'm
aware of. | could be wong about that. When the
di ning hall was opened, that was by reservation, so
there was a fee for that.

Q But there's a fee to cone to the park and
par k?

A. Yes. There is a fee to conme to park, period.

Q Now, based on what you' ve heard over the | ast
day and a half, is this proposal going to result in
nore of the building being open to the public than the
current use by reservation or by rental only?

A.  Yes.

Q So having nore of the building open, will that
provi de nore access to the public than Parks has been
able to provide in its 40-year history of ownership?

A. Yes.
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Q The next concern raised by the appellant had
to do with the loss of the volleyball court. Could you
descri be what they're alleging?

A. My understanding is that the concern is we are
W ping out a protected cultural and rel evant |andscape
feature.

Q \What's going to happen to that voll eybal

court with the proposal ?

A. The volleyball court will be turned, in part,
to a cultural -- culinary interpretive garden. The
vol | eybal | courts will be managed appropriately through

using the secretary of interior standards. So |ikely
there will be mtigation, insofar as educational signs
or interpretive panels to docunent those voll eybal
courts.

Q So the interior standards require
docunentation. They don't prohibit the renoval of the
vol | eybal | courts?

A.  No, they do not.

Q In addition to the concerns about alteration
of the volleyball courts, there was al so concern
expressed about the parking | ot and the Nuns' Garden
and the consistency with those of the CAWP.

Did the CAMP anticipate that parking

devel opnent woul d occur concurrently with the future
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devel opment of the Sem nary buil di ng?

A Yes, it did.

Q Can the parks comm ssion change a CAWP for a
particular park if it wants to?

A, Yes, it can.

Q Sol'vegot alittle nore detail | would |like
to ask you about for other attenpts to use the Sem nary
building. |Is this proposal fromDaniels the very first
time Parks has ever attenpted to make use of the
Sem nary building during its ownership?

A.  No.

Q Did Parks use the building to house the youth
core from1978 to 19807

A.  Yes.

Q Was there interest froma school district in
using the building in 19817

A.  Yes.

Q Was there an interest in the building being
dedi cated to a community center in 19847

A.  Yes.

Q Did McMenani ns express sone interest in
acquiring the building in 2006?

A.  Yes.

Q Did a cyber security firmexpress interest in

the building in 20137
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A Yes.

Q Did Bastyr express sone interest in the
buil ding in 20147

A, Yes.

Q Has the building been used for Ranger housi ng?

A Yes.

Q \Were any of those prior uses of -- did they
come to fruition or were they self-sustaining in the
sense they were able to pay for thenselves for the use
of the building?

A.  None of them were sel f-sustaining, no.

Q Are the costs for rehabilitation of the
building a limting factor on the use of the building?

A Yes.

Q So you used the termviable earlier. Wat
nmakes a proposal viable?

A. State Parks Comm ssion uses a nunber of
criteria to determne viability. W used five -- siXx
criteria, | believe. And it is based on a nunber of
t hi ngs, including our own m ssion, the city zoning, the
feasibility study that was conducted. There's a couple
ot hers.

What we were | ooking for was not sonething
that was sinply economcally feasible, but also viable

and could occur in a tinely manner. So there were a
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nunber of criteria that were used to determ ne that
viability. And none of the proposals that had been
brought forth, other than the Daniels proposal, net the
rules for viability.

Q So just to nmake sure the record is clear. Has
Par ks received any vi abl e proposals, other than from
the Daniels Goup, in the last three years for the use
of the building?

A.  No.

Q ©Didit receive a proposal -- a viable proposal
for an environnmental |earning center or for a nonprofit
use of the building in the |ast three years?

A.  No.

Q So the conm ssion has taken sone different
actions over the last few years about the Sem nary
building. | want to talk about a few of these. [|I'm
going to start with Novenber 2013. At that time, did
the comm ssion take sone action that directed parks
staff to actively seek out public or private
partnerships to rehabilitate the buil ding?

A.  Yes.

Q And so based on the testinony you just
provided, did parks staff identify any public or
private partnerships, other than the Daniels proposal,

that would have allowed it to rehabilitate the
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bui | di ng?

A, No.

Q In Septenber 2014, the conmm ssion provided a
one-year deadline to staff to find either a partnership
or vacate the building; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Was the direction to Park staff to vacate the

building at the end of that year if the deadline wasn't

met ?
A.  Yes.
Q Was a DNS issued for that decision?
A Yes
Q Was it appeal ed?
A.  No.

Q In Septenber of 2015, a year later, the
comi ssion took another action. And, at that point, it
extended the proposal to rehabilitate the Sem nary.
Was the reason for that extension because the only
proposal that had been received was the Daniels
proposal and the conm ssion wanted to further pursue
t hat ?

A Yes. But it was open to any proposal, as
wel | .

Q Did any other proposal cone in?

A.  No.
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Was a DNS issued for that decision?
Yes.

Was it appeal ed?

> O > O

No.

Q A year later, in Septenber 2016, the
conmi ssi on took action based on the comerce study.
Coul d you just briefly describe what the comrerce study
was ?

A. During the 2016 | egislative sessions, Parks
sought a position that would allow us to engage in a
| ease that was | onger than 15 years by sinple ngjority
vote. The existing statute all owed us a 50-year
maxi mum | ease with anything over 20 years being a
unani nous vote. The bill, Engrossed Second Substitute
House Bill 2667, was enacted that would allow state
park | odgings to engage in a | ease up to 62 years,
contingent upon: First, the commerce study report
whi ch was required to identify any economcally
feasi bl e options for nonprofit use of the Sem nary
bui I di ng; and, second, an affirnmative vote by the
commi ssion that there were no economcally viable
options for the building.

Q And |'ve just done an unpleasant thing to you,
as ny client, which is ask you to recall that from

menory rather than directing you to Exhibit No. 3 in
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the binder in front of you. |If | could direct you
there now to page nunber 2, | won't test your nenory
again for this next question.

A, Well, thanks.

Q \What the study asks for was -- one of the
things it identified was the baseline cost to restore
the building. On page 2 of this study, is that anount
$23.4 million?

A Yes, it is.

Q Okay. So followi ng the publication of the
comer ce study, the conmm ssion took action again in
Sept enber 2016. WAs their action there to find there
was no viable public or nonprofit alternative use for
the Sem nary buil di ng?

A.  Yes.

Q Did the conm ssion have a DNS to support that

deci si on?
Yes.
Q Was that DNS appeal ed?
A.  No.
Q I'mgoing to ask you now a few nore questions

about the EIS at issue here. There has been some
confusi on about Park's use of the EIS, as well as the
City's use of the EIS. So I'mgoing to ask you to

focus on State Park's use of the EIS.
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Did Parks rely on this Environnental I npact
Statenent for its separate decision to |lease the 5.5
acres to the Daniels G oup?

A Yes.

Q In that decision, the conm ssion held a
nmeeting on January 5th. Was that the neeting where
t hey took public coment? And by January 5th, | nean,
January 5, 2017, out of all the many, many public
neeti ngs on the project.

A Yes, it was.

Q D dthe conmssion nake its decision to
approve the | ease on January 9, 20177

A.  Yes.

Q Had the EI'S been conpleted by the tinme the
conmmi ssion nmade its decision on January 9, 20177

A.  Yes.

Q Didthe State issue separate notices of
adoption fromthe Final EIS and for the addendumto the
Fi nal EI S?

A.  Yes.

Q ©Didthe EISthat is before us today include
all of the potential inpacts for the | ease decision
fromthe Daniels proposal ?

A Yes.

Q Wien the comm ssion made its decision on
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January 9, 2017, did it have any other viable proposals
in front of it for the use of the Sem nary buil di ng?

A, No.

Q Was the decision to |l ease -- the signature of
the | ease and the adoptions of the FEI'S and of the
addendum were either of those appeal ed?

A.  No.

Q Yesterday, the hearing exam ner requested sone
clarification on whether any decisions remain with the
Parks Commi ssion. | would like to ask you to | ook at
Exhibit 25. And page 4 of Exhibit 25 -- so page 4 is
t he agenda for the January 9, 2017, Parks Commi ssion
meet i ng.

Page 4 has five requested actions of the
comm ssion. Did the conm ssion take those actions on
January 9t h?

A.  Yes.

Q Are there any other approvals that the
comi ssi on needs to issue regarding the | ease with the
Daniels Goup for the rehabilitation of this building?

A. Not that | know of.

Q So now that the | ease has been signed with
Daniels, will the comm ssion continue to consider other
options for the Sem nary buil di ng?

A.  No.
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Q There have been concerns raised during this
heari ng about the specul ative use of the trails on the
property at night. So the |last questions that | want
to ask you about have to do with the trail use.

Are the hours of trail use in state parks
governed by WAC 352- 32- 0507?

A.  Yes.

Q So in Saint Edward State Park, does the park
currently close at dusk?

A. That is my understandi ng.

Q Does State Parks encourage night use of the

trails in Saint Edward State Park?

A No.
Q Following the -- if the Daniels Sem nary
project goes forward, will State Parks |likely change

its position and encourage the | odge users to use the
trails at night?

A No.

Q WII parks reduce the current |evel of trai
mai nt enance on the park as a whole due to the Saint
Edward Sem nary project?

A.  No.

Q WII the addition of the 9.9 MDonal d property
allow the users to continue to use those trails?

A. Yes.
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Q And | apol ogize, | do have one other question
for you that has to do with the Nuns' Garden cl eanup
that Ms. Hirt nentioned previously.

Did that cleanup have anything to do with the

Dani el s Project?

A, No.

M5. WEHLING | have no further
guesti ons.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Actual ly, | have
one quick question. [I'll interject.

Ms. Logan, | don't know if you know the answer

to this, but I was curious. |f endangered species
habitat was found in the State Park, |ike the marbled

murrel et, for exanple, does the Park have any policies
about use of public trails in that area?
From personal experience, | know |ike at

Mar ynoor Park where they have bl ue heron, they just wall
of f areas for heron habitat. Does Parks do a simlar
response if the endangered species habitat is found?

A. W do manage endangered species. W rely on
t he Departnent of Fish and WIldlife and U S. Fish and
Wildlife to identify those habitats in our properties.
There is no marble nurrelet habitat identified at Saint
Edwar d Par k.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yeah. | know
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that. Geat. Thank you. W' Ill nove on to applicant
questions if any.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR MJRPHY:
Q Just to briefly summarize, you are the
SEPA-responsi bl e official for Parks?
A.  Yes.
Q And you concluded that the EI'S adequately
di sclosed all |ikely environnmental inpacts?
A.  Yes.
Q And that the mitigation proposed was adequate
i n your opinion?
A.  Yes.
MR. MJURPHY: Thank you.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER. M. Kaseguma, do
you have any questions?
MR, KASEGUVA:  None.
THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: Al right.
Ms. Hirt.

M5. VEHLING Ms. Hirt, while you're

getting your papers together, M. Examiner, | would just

note it's noon. And so depending on the nunber of

questions Ms. Hirt has, whether your preference would be

to allow her to question or take a lunch break and then

ask the questions after.
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THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Let ne ask, How
many do you have?

M5. HHRT: | have a nunber of questions.
It may go quickly.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: What do nost
people want? W started at 9:30, so | was thinking --

MR. RANADE: Wiy don't we get through
this wtness?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yeah. | think

so, too. 12:30 at the | atest maybe. Go ahead,

Ms. Hirt.
M5. HHRT: Yes, | do have a nunber of
gquesti ons.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. HI RT:
Q You answered -- well, I'mnot sure what you
answered. But | would like to know -- I"mgoing to

repeat a question. How many use the Sem nary
currently?

A.  How many people are currently in the Sem nary?

Q How many people currently use the Sem nary?

A, As of right now, no one is using the Sem nary
outside of tours. That's ny understanding.

Q | wanted to clarify that. 1Is it not true that

the reason to not use it, the Sem nary, for outdoor
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recreation, is because State Parks has not inplenented
a use for this?

A. | don't understand the question.

Q Is it not true that -- there was a question
about the building not being used for outdoor
recreation. M questionis, Is it not true that one of
the reasons that this is not been used in any formfor
out door recreation, other than birthday cel ebrations
and things like that, is that State Parks has not used
the building for prograns that would pertain to outdoor
recreation?

A. State Parks has worked with Dani el s Real
Estate to ensure --

Q I'mtalking in the past. [|'mtalking about in
the past, for the 40 years, is it not true that State
Par ks has not done anything to use the building for
sonmething related to outdoor education other than Earth
Day presentations by Friends or sonething |ike that?

A. The specific programming in historic use of
the park, | can't speak to. | do know we have
historically only allowed the dining hall area to be
used, because we had Capital Project ensure its safety.
| know that nuch is considered safe for public use.

Q So you don't see that -- so you don't -- so is

the dining hall the only space in the building that's
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consi dered safe for public use?

A. W had Capital Project that did some work in
the dining hall. And there is an associated office
there that, | think, we actually had Park staff in at
one point. W do have sone Park | odging. At one point
we stopped using it as Park | odgi ng because there were
safety concerns. | think we've done sonme nore work
since then, to be allowed as | odging again for Park
staff.

Q And the classroons on the first floor, what is
the status of the classroons on the first floor?

A. | don't know.

Q Soisn't it true that nore of the buil ding
could be used or am| hearing you -- is it only the
di ning hall that can be used?

A. That's ny understanding, but | don't know.

Q Al right. So your understanding is the
classroons on the first floor cannot be used?

A. | don't know.

Q And you haven't been -- you don't have a
hi story of them ever being used? You have all the --
you don't have anything in the history of the use of
the building that indicates the classroons were ever
used by State Parks?

A. | don't know.
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Q There are three large classroons on the first
floor. Are you aware of that?

A. Mmhmm Yes.

Q So those roons could have been used for
outdoor recreation or outdoor education, recreation,
nature studi es?

A. | do not --

M5. WEHLI NG This question has been
asked and answered, M. Exam ner.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ms. Hirt, | think
it has been.

MS. H RT: No.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  You' re aski ng her
what the roons have been used for, she said -- | think
she answered the question.

M5. HIRT: She said, as far as she knew,
t hey had been used. |'m asking, Could they have been
used?

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Okay. Al right.
Coul d they have been used?

A. | don't know if those roonms are appropriate to
be used or if they have been used, | do not know.

Q (BY Ms. HRT) That's the |Iack of know edge
that -- okay. Thank you. So do you have any know edge

of how the building has been used in the past?
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A. Yes. To sone extent.

Q Okay. Can you give nme a couple of exanples?

A. | know that we use the dining hall. W rent
it out for weddings and such. | know that we've had
Ranger lodging in the building in the past. | know

that staff used the office space periodically for
neet i ngs.
Q And you're aware of the environnmental schoo

that used the building for a nunber of years for

cl asses?

A. 1've heard that. [|'mnot personally aware of
that, no. | should say | read about that.

Q You have read about that -- you have sone

acknow edgnent that that did take place in the

bui | di ng? The buil ding was used for the environnental

school ?
A Yes.
Q | have questions about the map in the Nuns'

Garden. So if you could go to the map and show us
where the Nuns' Garden is?

A It's in this area.

Q Okay. Now show us where the parking lot -- on
this map overlays or -- how does it fit in wth --

A. This map is denoting this parking space right

here.
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Q I'mjust going to join you

A. See this parking.

Q Yes, | know that's parking. This big space
that's going to be expanded. Wen you expand this,
where will it be on this map?

M5. WEHLING |I'mgoing to object; it
assunes facts that are not in evidence.

M5. HRT: But the map is up here. W
should be able to --

THE HEARING EXAM NER: Let's limt it to
the question on where is the map | ocated on the aerial
phot ogr aph.

M5. HI RT: How does this fit on here?

M5. WEHLING |'mgoing to object,
again. There's no indication that those two posters are
to scale, and that they' re designed to be the sanme size.

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | think that's
what she is asking. How would you scale it so --

M5. HHRT: It's not a size question.

It's a question of, There's a new asphalt parking | ot
here. Were does that go? It's going to be bigger than
this. And --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | f you coul d show
us where the parking lot is going to be | ocated?

M5. HIRT: There's a proposal to cut
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down trees. \Were are those trees? |If it's close to
t he Nuns' Garden, how close is it to the Nuns' Garden?
That's the type of thing --

M5. WEHLING |'m going to object,
again. There's a compound question in there, and it
assunes facts that are not in evidence from M. Logan's
t esti nony.

M5. HHRT: So who do | ask that question

MR. RANADE: |'m going to object on
rel evance grounds. This goes to the nerits of the
project and not to the question of the adequacy of the
ElIS. The testinony in the record is that the trees --
Ms. Hirt herself testified that the potential for the
removal of those 11 trees is disclosed in the EIS. |'m
j ust wondering what the rel evance of this |ine of
guestioning is.

M5. HI RT: The rel evance of the question
is trying to understand what's in the EIS about this
parking lot and --

THE HEARI NG EXAM NER: | think it
doesn't -- it seens to be a fairly straightforward
question: \Were is the parking lot depicted in the site
pl an on the aerial photograph? |If you can show that to

us, Ms. Logan? That's it